Public Document Pack -

- CouhTy Counéil

To: Chair and Members of the Planning  Date: 5 September 2018
Committee

Direct Dial: 01824 712589

e-mail: democratic@denbighshire.gov.uk

Dear Councillor

You are invited to attend a meeting of the PLANNING COMMITTEE to be held at 9.30
AM on WEDNESDAY, 12 SEPTEMBER 2018 in THE COUNCIL CHAMBER, COUNTY
HALL, RUTHIN.

Yours sincerely

G Williams
Head of Legal, HR and Democratic Services

AGENDA

1 APOLOGIES (Pages5 - 8)
To receive apologies for absence.

2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST (Pages 9 - 10)

Members to declare any personal or prejudicial interests in any business
identified to be considered at this meeting.

3 URGENT MATTERS AS AGREED BY THE CHAIR

Notice of items which, in the opinion of the Chair, should be considered at the
meeting as a matter of urgency pursuant to Section 100B(4) of the Local
Government Act, 1972.

4 MINUTES (Pages 11 - 16)

To confirm the accuracy of the minutes of the Planning Committee meeting
held on the 18 July 2018 (copy attached).



APPLICATIONS FOR PERMISSION FOR DEVELOPMENT (ITEMS 5 - 10) -

5 APPLICATION NO. 01/2018/0607 - LAND AT CAE TOPYN OFF OLD
RUTHIN ROAD, FFORDD EGLWYSWEN, DENBIGH (Pages 17 - 30)
To consider an application for details of the scheme for the disposal of foul
and surface water, sustainable drainage principles and provision of
subsequent management and maintenance arrangements submitted in
accordance with condition 8 of planning permission code 01/2016/0374/PF
(copy attached).

6  APPLICATION NO. 21/2018/0166 - 12 BRYN ARTRO AVENUE,
LLANFERRES, MOLD (Pages 31 - 50)
To consider an application for the erection of a single storey rear extension
(copy attached).

7  APPLICATION NO 21/2018/0293 - 16 RECTORY LANE, LLANFERRES,
MOLD (Pages 51 - 68)
To consider an application for the demolition of a porch and the erection of an
attached garage (amended scheme) (copy attached).

8 APPLICATION NO. 43/2018/0328 - 1-5 PARC DYFFRYN INDUSTRIAL
ESTATE, PRESTATYN (Pages 69 - 78)
To consider an application for the construction of a new surface level car park
and associated works (copy attached).

9 APPLICATION NO. 43/2018/0439 - 45 BEACH ROAD WEST, PRESTATYN
(Pages 79 - 92)
To consider an application for the demolition of an existing garage and a
change of use of the domestic curtilage to accommodate a static caravan for
use as a holiday let (copy attached).

10 APPLICATION NO. 43/2018/0522 - FOUR WINDS FARM CARAVAN SITE,
FFORDD FFYNNON, PRESTATYN (Pages 93 - 102)
To consider an application for the removal of condition no. 3 of planning
permission code no. 43/2018/0030 (‘The site shall only be used for caravans
on tour and no caravan shall stay on the site for any period longer than 21
days')(copy attached).

11 INFORMATION REPORT - PLANNING APPEALS UPDATE (Pages 103 -
110)



To receive an information report on recent planning appeal decisions
received from March 2018 to date (copy attached).

MEMBERSHIP
Councillors
Councillor Joe Welch (Chair)

Ellie Chard

Ann Davies
Meirick Davies
Peter Evans
Brian Jones

Huw Jones

Tina Jones
Gwyneth Kensler
Christine Marston

COPIES TO:
All Councillors for information

Press and Libraries
Town and Community Councils

Councillor Alan James (Vice-Chair)

Bob Murray

Merfyn Parry

Pete Prendergast
Andrew Thomas
Tony Thomas

Julian Thompson-Hill
Emrys Wynne

Mark Young



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 1

WELCOME TO DENBIGHSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL'S
PLANNING COMMITTEE

HOW THE MEETING WILL BE CONDUCTED

Unless the Chair of the Committee advises to the contrary, the order in which the main items will be taken will follow the
agenda set out at the front of this report.

General introduction

The Chair will open the meeting at 9.30am and welcome everyone to the Planning Committee.
The Chair will ask if there are any apologies for absence and declarations of interest.
The Chair will invite Officers to make a brief introduction to matters relevant to the meeting.

Officers will outline as appropriate items which will be subject to public speaking, requests for deferral, withdrawals,
special reports, and any Part 2 items where the press and public may be excluded. Reference will be made to additional
information circulated in the Council Chamber prior to the start of the meeting, including the late
representations/amendments summary sheets (‘Blue Sheets’) and any supplementary or revised plans relating to items
for consideration.

The Blue Sheets'contain important information, including a summary of material received in relation to items on the
agenda between the completion of the main reports and the day before the meeting. The sheets also set out the
proposed running order on planning applications, to take account of public speaking requests.

In relation to the running order of items, any Members seeking to bring forward consideration of an item will be expected
to make such a request immediately following the Officer's introduction. Any such request must be made as a formal
proposal and will be subject to a vote.

The Planning Committee consists of 21 elected Members. In accordance with protocol, 11 Members must be present at
the start of a debate on an item to constitute quorum and to allow a vote to be taken.

County Council Members who are not elected onto Planning Committee may attend the meeting and speak on an item,
but are not able to make a proposal to grant or refuse, or to vote.

CONSIDERING PLANNING APPLICATIONS

The sequence to be followed

The Chair will announce the item which is to be dealt with next. In relation to planning applications, reference will be
made to the application number, the location and basis of the proposal, the relevant local Members for the area, and the
Officer recommendation.

If any Member is minded to propose deferral of an item, including to allow for the site to be visited by a Site Inspection
Panel, the request should be made, with the planning reason for deferral, before any public speaking or debate on that
item.

If there are public speakers on an item, the Chair will invite them to address the Committee. Where there are speakers
against and for a proposal, the speaker against will be asked to go first. The Chair will remind speakers they have a
maximum of 3 minutes to address the Committee. Public speaking is subject to a separate protocol.

Where relevant, the Chair will offer the opportunity for Members to read any late information on an item on the 'Blue
Sheets' before proceeding.

Page 5



Prior to any debate, the Chair may invite Officers to provide a brief introduction to an item where this is considered to be
worthwhile in view of the nature of the application.

There are display screens in the Council Chamber which are used to show photographs, or plans submitted with
applications. The photographs are taken by Officers to give Members a general impression of a site and its surroundings,
and are not intended to present a case for or against a proposal.

The Chair will announce that the item is open for debate and offer Members opportunity to speak and to make
propositions on the item.

If any application has been subject to a Site Inspection Panel prior to the Committee, the Chair will normally invite those
Members who attended, including the Local Member, to speak first.

On all other applications, the Chair will permit the Local Member(s) to speak first, should he/she/they wish to do so.

Members are normally limited to a maximum of five minutes speaking time, and the Chair will conduct the debate in
accordance with Standing Orders.

Once a Member has spoken, he/she should not speak again unless seeking clarification of points arising in debate, and
then only once all other Members have had the opportunity to speak, and with the agreement of the Chair.

At the conclusion of Members debate, the Chair will ask Officers to respond as appropriate to questions and points
raised, including advice on any resolution in conflict with the recommendation.

Prior to proceeding to the vote, the Chair will invite or seek clarification of propositions and seconders for propositions for
or against the Officer recommendation, or any other resolutions including amendments to propositions. Where a
proposition is made contrary to the Officer recommendation, the Chair will seek clarification of the planning reason(s) for
that proposition, in order that this may be recorded in the Minutes of the meeting. The Chair may request comment from
the Legal and Planning Officer on the validity of the stated reason(s).

The Chair will announce when the debate is closed, and that voting is to follow.

The voting procedure

Before requesting Members to vote, the Chair will announce what resolutions have been made, and how the vote is to
proceed. If necessary, further clarification may be sought of amendments, new or additional conditions and reasons for
refusal, so there is no ambiguity over what the Committee is voting for or against.

If any Member requests a Recorded Vote, this must be dealt with first in accordance with Standing Orders. The Chair
and Officers will clarify the procedure to be followed. The names of each voting Member will be called out and each
Member will announce whether their vote is to grant, to refuse, or to abstain. Officers will announce the outcome of the
vote on the item.

If a vote is to proceed in the normal manner via the electronic voting system, the Chair will ask Officers to set up the
voting screen(s) in the Chamber, and when requested, Members must record their votes by pressing the appropriate
button (see following sheet).

Members have 10 seconds to record their votes once the voting screen is displayed, unless advised otherwise by
Officers.

On failure of the electronic voting system, the vote may be conducted by a show of hands. The Chair and Officers will
clarify the procedure to be followed.

On conclusion of the vote, the Chair will announce the decision on the item.
Where the formal resolution of the Committee is contrary to Officer recommendation, the Chair will request Members to
agree the process through which planning conditions or reasons for refusal are to be drafted, in order to release the

Decision Certificate (e.g. delegating authority to the Planning Officer, to the Planning Officer in liaison with Local
Members, or by referral back to Planning Committee for ratification).

Page 6



PLANNING COMMITTEE

ELECTRONIC VOTING PROCEDURE

Members are reminded of the procedure when using the electronic
voting system to cast their vote.

Unless otherwise advised by the Chair or Officers, once the display
screens in the Chamber have been cleared in preparation for the vote,
and the voting screen appears, Councillors have 10 seconds to record
their vote as follows:

When voting on applications, on the voting keyboard, press

1 - to GRANT / APPROVE the application
2 —to ABSTAIN from voting on the application
3 — to REFUSE the application

When voting on special reports and enforcement items, on the
voting keyboard, press

1 - to ACCEPT THE OFFICER RECOMMENDATION
2 - to ABSTAIN from voting on the recommendation
3 - to NOT ACCEPT THE OFFICER RECOMMENDATION

In the event of problems with the electronic voting system, the Chair
or Officers will advise on the procedures to be followed.

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 2
sir ddinbych 11
T

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 2000 County Council

Code of Conduct for Members

DISCLOSURE AND REGISTRATION OF INTERESTS

|, (name)

a *member/co-opted member of Denbighshire County Council
(*please delete as appropriate)

CONFIRM that | have declared a *personal / personal and prejudicial
interest not previously declared in accordance with the provisions of Part llI

of the Council’s Code of Conduct for Members, in respect of the following:-
(*please delete as appropriate)

Date of Disclosure:

Committee (please specify):

Agenda Item No.

Subject Matter:

Nature of Interest:

(See the note below)*

Signed

Date

*Note: Please provide sufficient detail e.g. ‘I am the owner of land adjacent to the application for
planning permission made by Mr Jones', or 'My husband / wife is an employee of the company which
has made an application for financial assistance’.

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 4

PLANNING COMMITTEE

Minutes of a meeting of the Planning Committee held in the Council Chamber, County
Hall, Ruthin on Wednesday, 18 July 2018 at 9.30 am.

PRESENT
Councillors Ellie Chard, Ann Davies, Meirick Davies, Peter Evans, Alan James (Vice-
Chair), Brian Jones, Huw Jones, Tina Jones, Gwyneth Kensler, Christine Marston,
Bob Murray, Pete Prendergast, Andrew Thomas, Tony Thomas, Joe Welch (Chair),
Emrys Wynne and Mark Young

Observer - Councillor Melvyn Mile

ALSO PRESENT

Team Leader — Places Team (SC), Principal Planning Officer (IW), Planning and Public
Protection Manager (AL), Principal Planning Officer (SS), Planning Officer (CMF),
Principal Planning and Public Protection Officer (CE), Solicitor (CT), Senior Planning
officer — Conwy Council (MS) and Committee Administrator (SJ)

1 APOLOGIES

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Merfyn Parry and
Julian Thompson-Hill

2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Councillor Emrys Wynne declared a personal interest in item 9 on the Agenda.
3 URGENT MATTERS AS AGREED BY THE CHAIR

No urgent matters.
4 MINUTES

The minutes of the Planning Committee meeting held on 20 June 2018 were
submitted.

Councillor Meirick Lloyd Davies asked if the decision against officer recommendation
for the planning permission at Ysrad Isa would be presented back to the Planning
Committee.

The Principal Planning Officer explained to members that the Development Manager

and Head of service felt there was no need to bring the report back to the Planning
Committee.

Page 11



RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on 20 June 2018 be approved as
a correct record.

APPLICATIONS FOR PERMISSIONS FOR DEVELOPMENT (ITEMS 5-7) -

Applications received requiring determination by the committee were submitted together
with associated documentation. Reference was also made to late supplementary
information (blue sheets) received since publication of the agenda which related to
particular applications. In order to accommodate public speaking requests it was agreed to
vary the agenda order of applications accordingly.

5

APPLICATION NO. 14/2018/0360/ - CLOCAENOG FOREST WIND FARM

An application was submitted for a borrow pit for the extraction of aggregate, solely
for use in the construction of the approved Clocaenog Forest Wind Farm.

At the juncture, Councillor Alan James requested the application be deferred pending
the results of the hydrogeological impact assessment (HIA).

Officers informed members of some background information and confirmed that, in
their view, the application could proceed on the current information.

Proposal — Councillor Alan James proposed, seconded by Councillor Mark Young
that the application be deferred.

VOTE:
IN FAVOUR OF DEFERRAL - 14
ABSTAIN -0

AGAINST DEFERRAL - 2
RESOLVED that the application be deferred to a later date.

APPLICATION NO. 41/2018/0009/ - CHAPEL COTTAGE, MOLD ROAD,
BODFARI, DENBIGH

An application was submitted for the erection of extensions to dwellings at Chapel
Cottage, Mold Road, Bodfari, Denbigh.

Public Speaker —

Martin Shutt (For) — stated the applicant had made decisions in line with the AONB
guidelines for design of the property. The proposal was for a modern extension to the
existing property with recommendations in place to allow the extension to compliment
the surrounding area. Changes had already taken place to the original proposal in
line with the AONB guidelines. Discussions were welcomed with the planning officer
to alleviate any other concerns. The site of the application is enclosed and the
proposed extension to the rear of the property concealed from view.

General Debate — a Site Inspection Panel meeting had taken place on 12 July 2018.

Page 12



Councillor Christine Marston (Local Member) gave a brief background to the proposal
site. Councillor Marston stated that support had been given from Bodfari Community
Council with no concerns or objections from neighbouring properties received. The
AONB supplementary planning guidance stated that for extensions to free standing
properties there was more freedom on the design of extension. Confirmation was
provided to the committee that the property was obscured from view from
neighbouring properties.

Councillor Meirick Lloyd Davies stated he had visited the site. The scale of the
extension to the rear of the property was more elevated to the current property and
was not sympathetic in design.

Councillor Alan James informed members that he had been in attendance at the site
visit. The proposal is very contemporary and felt there was scope to have a
contemporary building in the area. Councillor Gwyneth Kensler hoped that the
extension would be an energy saving property with high green standards.

It was confirmed by the Principal Planning Officer the height of the extension to the
property is lower than the existing dwelling. Green standards would be adopted with
the extension if granted. Officers had reservations on design and if the proposal was
in keeping with the existing dwelling and area. It was confirmed that if the application
was granted conditions would be applied to the application following discussions with
the lead member.

Proposal — Councillor Christine Marston proposed to grant the application, against
officer recommendation as the design is original and within the scope of the
guidelines laid down within the elements of the plan, seconded by Councillor Mark
Young.

VOTE:
GRANT against officer recommendation - 14
ABSTAIN -0

REFUSE in accordance with officer recommendation - 3
RESOLVED that the application be GRANTED against officer recommendation.

APPLICATION NO. 20/2018/0484/ - BRANAS, LLANFAIR DYFFRYN CLWYD,
RUTHIN

An application was submitted for erection of ground floor extension to dwelling at
Branas, Llanfair Dyffryn Clwyd, Ruthin.

Proposal — Councillor Gwyneth Kensler proposed the officer recommendations to
grant the application, seconded by Councillor Huw Jones.

VOTE:

GRANT - 17
REFUSE -0
ABSTAIN -0

Page 13



RESOLVED that permission be GRANTED in accordance with officer
recommendations as stipulated within the report.

CONSULTATION RESPONSE - ISSUES, OPTIONS AND PREFERRED OPTION
FOR THE EMERGING NATIONAL DEVELOPMENT FRAMEWORK

The Strategic Planning and Housing Manager, introduced the report presenting the
consultation response — Issues, Options and Preferred Option for the emerging
National Development Framework.

Background information was provided to members on the update of the production
of the Welsh Government’s National Development Framework. It was stated that it
will provide a framework for investment, identify key areas of growth and type and
location of infrastructure. The framework will sit alongside the Planning Policy Wales.
The National Development framework (NDF) will provide a framework for Regional
Strategic Development Plan and Local Development Plan to conform to.

The NDF currently was at a very early stage of development. Members heard the
timescale for the NDF was twenty years with a review completed every five years.
Welsh Government looked at a number of different options. The preferred option
named Sustainable Places. Further consultation was due to take place and a draft
NDF to be produced. A report will be brought to the Planning committee following
consultation.

A concern that officers had noted on the draft consultation report (Appendix 2) was
housing numbers. The suggestion was Welsh Government would set the number of
houses at a regional level. No further explanation had been given regarding allocation
of housing numbers between authorities. Timing had been a concern. There had
been a risk that the timing of the NDF and work completed on the Local Development
Plan would be out of sync.

Members echoed the concerns raised from officers regarding the timing of work
completed, especially in line with the Local Development Plan.

Following a unanimous show of hands, it was

RESOLVED that the Planning Committee note the report and agree the draft National
Development Framework consultation response.

SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING GUIDANCE: 'CARAVANS, CHALETS &
CAMPING' - ADOPTION OF FINAL DOCUMENT

Councillor Emrys Wynne declared a Personal Interest in this agenda item as the
report author was his daughter in law.

The Planning Officer introduced the report presenting the draft Supplementary
Planning guidance (SPG): Caravans, Chalets and Camping — adoption of final
document. It was highlighted to the committee that the SPG was only applicable to
new sites or extension to existing sites for holiday use.

Page 14



10

Councillor Mark Young asked if the report had been adopted at an earlier stage would
previous planning applications have been granted. He raised the concern that
previously permission for ‘pod’ had been granted with the assurance it could not
become a static caravan and wanted confirmation this was still applicable.

In reply to the concerns raised by Councillor Young, the Planning Officers stated the
policy remains the same. The recommendations on previous planning applications
would therefore be the same. The policy direction is set in PSE12 refers to caravans,
any changes would have to be made through the Local Development Plan.
Confirmation was given on the definition of a caravan.

Following a unanimous show of hands it was

RESOLVED that members adopt the proposed SPG for use in determination of
planning applications and appeals.

RHYL CONSERVATION AREA APPRAISAL

The Strategic Planning and Housing Manager introduced a report to seek members’
approval to undertake consultation on the draft Rhyl Conservation Area Appraisal,
with statutory bodies and members of the public.

A brief background and definition of a conservation area was provided to members.
Originally there had been two conservation areas in Rhyl which were combined into
one in 2007. Some concerns had been raised following the merge at certain areas
loosing character. A number of key changes had been proposed with certain areas
to be included in the conservation area and others being removed.

The public consultation was proposed to last eight weeks and would engage with
Rhyl Town Council, local residents providing information at the library, the website
and the pop up shop in the White Rose Centre. Any responses to the consultation
would be brought back to the Planning committee in due course.

During discussion members asked how we buildings will be managed in the
conservation areas if they do not meet standards.

The Principal Planning and Public Protection Officer confirmed that no enforcement
actions are taken on the property, work would be done to preserve the property.
Maintaining standards is essential and taking enforcement action on works that occur
that we were not aware of remains vital.

Discussions and working with the Rhyl Master Plan had continued.

Following a unanimous show of hands it was

RESOLVED that, Members approve the draft Rhyl Conservation Area Appeal,
Appendix 1 to be subject to public consultation over a period of eight weeks.

The meeting concluded at 10:35 a.m.

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank



WARD :

WARD MEMBERS:

APPLICATION NO:

PROPOSAL:

LOCATION:

Agenda Iltem 5

Denbigh Lower

Councillors Mark Young (¢ ) and Rhys Thomas

01/2018/0607/ AC

Details of the scheme for the disposal of foul and surface water,
sustainable drainage principles and provision of subsequent
management and maintenance arrangements submitted in
accordance with condition 8 of planning permission code
01/2016/0374/PF

Land at Cae Topyn off Old Ruthin Road Ffordd Eglwyswen
Denbigh LL16 4RA

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank



Dol awel

Farm
Tantrallt

J\Brookhousé?

Brookhouse
. Bridge

“u .
© Crown copyright-and database rights 2017 © "?Tan e Suney 100023408.
pyrig 0 g 'ﬁdm%u\ Yy

e A7m
01/2018/0607 sir ddinbych @
Scale: 1:5000 denblgmm{g -

Printed on: 22/8/2018 at 14:53 PM Page 19 © Denbighshire County Council



PO A el N SR D R e

& Pt e = e .
P L ) B b Taie] btur B WSy

= wnil) [ LITL -1

- mbems T — -~

47 AL Oy

-

O R M0 000 M1 MA4OL B

-

CRET TR SR S

g

—

ONMYHD DNINNYId

WAL WORS T8 L

WL

oy 1yy

LS |

LT

ey rs)

a0 #xynop enH oI Doy
SORT0 mabae Uk b2 f
bz i

LT

LS LT S0 NV T W ARy

'$'0d meR59 L

Y3y 3LIS TIVHIAD  WON0E 52

LT Trioy

PP Se B ol 2L MOTVONII OTBZ 1 3dAL
resr 13 8 on L4 ISNOH MAOL 08 2 - © FdML
v p B on gL ISNOHNMOL GIEL "3 3dAL

P36 0 o ISNOH YIS QIBE- I 3dAL

rescrs B oN g ASNOH VIS AL O AL
wore 551 0 eng 3SNOH £30038 8- B Saa
notrssl D oS ISNOH L300 F- 5 3dAL

nhtdsi B on e MOTYONNE HINNOO A28C- 8 BdAL
" Zorgl B oD 3SNOH I3003G r- ¥ JdaL
INATHIS

LA S5y D = N I
20 DT MG LMY W BT T it BT S F M 4
Trou

L
Tehis | JOM AT AW R MOEITOH Tha LS \

u.%o!—l(’n-
R 3 T L1V3D (L S,
Y (L L3 RO (S Y

A

TS MNTreD bar (11 abey \r FOLLI AT ML OV LMD
T 0018 Pl b LW D ML TIO0
S L 300, COACIT LS ORI DSt )

AV £ (MRS JIA E KL
LTI STVR 50 4 S BT ek




=

ey
‘Ew

e

]

t ngineering '

by B rvon

T — Frusts 9 Rearey e b Aotews

-

U e ot A Dentstes Gt § et
1ot il tagteoy Asnety
Y1 rn Swrime S S, Rt
#

wih

g e 14 be dopled - CWR

npcpmd By
—E— 3= lreley d Star & Warnir
. {natry Eond Cuby & Leww

]

GEND

T

i

[Consultancy

=

[t
ALY A W P v dorey 10T (D e

VI et W bl o R 1] T (e e e BHOD e s e

5:; 153 ,

RES:DENTENL DEVFLOPSENT ATCAE TOFYs |

HrURDETEGA W 3 5% % DENRY AN

!

N B ey

"

—oC —
)
Y- I

UL RESUMNIIAL A COMMERLIALL

ul

TN 150 ATHE
[T [Hemba it

T
|

" tDmat et

o bt capt QAT B A PR R fuker b abpe

it £} opany

ot
T ey Ot ol W oy ant b ey

MO e b T P e

L g e e A
® mowdpry of Ti M dhen Py £ ey Suled
P nrT - o T
bors veed b b b 6 IR0 e BAY

s
fotriben (97)
Lotbcun b 4
b

b anad

¥ o

It # ml
-+ )

ii;

mu
Fals)
It

furw Uhared vegrewy & Domais Trtce Sae
Comvate Sttty

pE 3
4 ;7. !:
1R
QIR
P {
i
i

I "F;" 5'-




B NARS QRO N AN
IVIEY INIMAO LA TYUNICS I

1
il
s Y
NI
gl oo
i
R R Y
i Bl

[ R I S T T R —
BAX] - Mgy B B ey pe 17
shabudag) winphimesaq [ ANpED) SN P | ey ey
bat) - prey v 4y il\-.ll.i.!.l.l'!fa.
BAN) - PR My by Wieddrhy bur Asss pay amy =
BY) - Welapy e b b by sy
T} by ey b}
W § il Py bepha) o (-
Loy peietinied) m—.
R eep]

v e R

@@ﬁmﬂmmm@

¥ I.—.ﬁm‘"
i




=
e
——

"t "N ERSAWIN O NAJOL

¥ 1Y INTRIOTIAN IVHINIOR
_ LLERUMIEHUOVE RV T EEAT

...i;.........,..
PO

Ir
o
ko =
== T ey mo

TVAOUAY 404

[t | CTATE B b et i
i A I peelep $un PP G ol WS
Mty pan AN ) i el ] ) R Latetn) w T fy |

Parad A/ TR st )y eape 2 0L

orar iy oy ety
ey [l 100 Bt (0 we
P P gy ilbbsbar) veswt Pt Teml b = watEi) s
T A TS GRLAA ® walTE) T ) W PUTE b i
) Wadha b w B 1 et M Pt ey At 7 88y g
[oa
Al ] T B k) M M et e by g v 8 22
Pk T S ) b bt e e ol

2N (107 T P pa) i s Py s Sy g
‘}aii}!!‘-i e ]
hapyy o Pur gl
oo it mng 5 ) oy Ty B oy Rser RprS W oy 3
el il !‘l'fl_"il
iyt joipda § C: Tk b o ey b
[ PRy ity oy pmdngd PRI A e e pasiad g ]

I
!
]
?

i
i
!

H
13
3
-1

I
i
i
is
i
!
i
i
!

SR P § S dent] ey Dt T TP
ipsary Soadni - Dy W W Suiamy §
éi‘lf..ltlalobz.llno_u-|
dbmany Madny ey
Phbidyhy b 2, opa S By mby T T
PAY) - Pouopy 4y W dyirlA Bty et
IO AWAB] | i) et ) S e
BAY) - NPy b 8 Ensay B ) g ey — ) —
(1]
Ry - A
W A Fraihy b e poy an T my
iy s S
] ¥ dgvy ey homy
PR R sk Py beger) — ()

Lty pomasicnene) —

el b T |
:

———— [’

- nd
T N

v AL u_ﬂ:
i i

m@h

") Py
rm_,_iu,_ i ;..“.7..... | /e g
=i
et -t b ]l =

el = )= L
e 1 'l ™
i

e
s

ONIOT ANdINGD




o, LT S = S T [y T e —————
L il P L Rt Attt Phortf D Mk} (y hgell it e ¢ 1 Arnp cm i Ly p TR 0l Gt by fowwort crmiee [T T g onn sy b 1 smet] S iy — L =
I T (bt s 270 1 haapd) b AT B Y iy ikt f b bt T e (1
e * T v ] BV PR L GLT ) Ry s L by (s e 20T R R A b ) Ladadecag by TLES B srhalebwads A S e o i s I D -
- — - o Abdnaby sy Gl SRTPL SR 4 0 WS e 4 Bt iy B G4 o] T AR ) LR B et ks ki) bl Ayt |t Bkl ek L v Mhass S BB P MW e MR sy Indpiy P W, A PELPC By by LN}
! P B Mg WML 15w FLITR v il 2y bl | Ancusy overns) 3auy 5 T
POF Matt THA e W G A gy g S M) Pkt dacl | e g, o M e 2k MR PRy e e L
A ¥ B wh b Al S W ALY URMRMIN e i kg S B 5 Tva L[ B g v s b ey — ) SR E] | WD) W0 D 3 A
Ldat 11§l Hb o L g L W yhd ) wmsape) Ay W4 P AR D) M DR S ) B I iy LT, B Vi) £y LY
TR AR puisT) B8 T RS ot TR L) G (0 e PTIRTE M ES L S 0 asd S 8 e By § R iy STy 4 U, (e, AR g davar - L R R R D Ty
Wiy be bl et Sesee Loy, b W BT 5 Pt ek by = = (7]
s 3 [BHmts 1] LE L] Gl v il hid mteew e R AT B B o) Y 0y LOGE, B e 4 M 116 TRATH  AE W te by oy mp ART BHITE
-~ THL T LT ety RS0 0 b Pl A A d LAY bt 8y 1S Y W ) e L f g i) g 2 M) Pl LI it Pk oot iy Sy S et 1 1 b 8 liatin Wby pa mex, pey atn T TEF
I_rhhuli..lttlisarlql!f!l.!xit B B 0 Lt ey BB et LM e g |1 el 0T, Livanh Wiy R vt d 1y 0bTy ) War, B ey Bt o Sk b o brid) o S o e e} by e A
wuenasue )| 8 PR+ ATLP Bad b bive ) o TITY fpaTy b oA ey iy
- W) L) L) ) Sl pegtye) O TP ram ied | Ml U P e A M N PRORTE M R el Shefrid sy pub Qs Lunpcd ds0ary dn A § M) bty @) nensy — —
TR EA T LTS Sy S Y PR NBD by tone lE W Ay |l A b 8 (e s e B eid vy g g " el a4 A eatp baer)
LG | E-a o g end Bbaltd bt | B Dt b 8wl b hay AR Sy I 4 SmAD ba 4 ReL ks sy (W4T frmestioy @ ety | _ 7
r iy pprend 1B h e P o el A e, M) bebenns  org sy ) ) G B Mt 4 S g Pe, Y LER dar e e, nmy THOS hrdm § ar, rog bat) —f 3
ey B Rt im0 sl P g g T G ph Link s 4 Adiais e} M 0] L e i
) = e b b B g, § tauag iy e A W ) Py IS bl PRy sy e s g LERrng jobutivak) m——

C I

T B b
oL T OISy § e EREY Aee br e THT
N

E
4
;
r
:
%
i
H
;
i
i
i
§

L T )
R R e )
(6t wil 5 P e it )

(00dia 4 ) Fests mtm hesh]

ONIOFY HRONOD

N0 an ;%
— MCLIHETTE




WARD :

WARD MEMBERS:

APPLICATION NO:

PROPOSAL.:

LOCATION:

APPLICANT:

CONSTRAINTS:
PUBLICITY
UNDERTAKEN:

Denbigh Lower
Councillors Mark Young (¢ ) and Rhys Thomas
01/2018/0607/ AC

Details of the scheme for the disposal of foul and surface water,
sustainable drainage principles and provision of subsequent
management and maintenance arrangements submitted in
accordance with condition 8 of planning permission code
01/2016/0374/PF

Land at Cae Topyn off Old Ruthin Road Ffordd Eglwyswen
Denbigh LL16 4RA

Mr G Jones, Pure Residential And Commercial Ltd.

PROW

Site Notice - No

Press Notice - No
Neighbour letters - Yes

REASON(S) APPLICATION REPORTED TO COMMITTEE:

Scheme of Delegation Part 2

e Recommendation to grant / approve — Town / Community Council objection

CONSULTATION RESPONSES:
DENBIGH TOWN COUNCIL
“The town councillors wished to object to the below application - not appropriate and the town
councillors wish to support the County Council and local residents with the objection.”

DWR CYMRU / WELSH WATER

No objections raised in relation to the foul sewer arrangements. Consider the arrangements to
be acceptable in principle, and confirm the details are subject to technical review under Section
104 of the Water Industry Act (1991).

DENBIGHSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL CONSULTEES —

Highways Officer

Following detailed discussions and meetings between Highway Engineers, independent
consultants employed to assess the applicant’'s scheme and the applicant, Officers are
satisfied that the drainage proposals are acceptable, will work and that the Highway Authority
will be able to adopt the relevant elements under the appropriate legislation.

Lead Local Flood Engineer

| have discussed the surface water drainage proposals with the developer and his consultants
in detail. 'm satisfied that the developer has exercised due diligence in employing a suitably
qualified and experienced engineering consultancy to design the surface water drainage
system. The proposed system manages the risk of flooding of the development site and
adjacent land and property in an appropriate fashion, in accordance with current national

guidelines.

RESPONSE TO PUBLICITY:

None at time of writing report

EXPIRY DATE OF APPLICATION: 19/08/2018

Page 25



EXTENSION OF TIME AGREED Yes

REASONS FOR DELAY IN DECISION (where applicable)

additional information required from applicant

PLANNING ASSESSMENT:
1. THE PROPOSAL:
1.1 Summary of proposals

1.11

The application relates to details required under one of the conditions of the planning
permission for the 75 dwelling development at Cae Topyn, Denbigh, granted on
appeal in September 2017.

Condition 8 of planning permission 01/2016/0374 relates to drainage detailing, and is
worded as follows:

“No development shall commence until details of a scheme for the disposal of foul
and surface water from the development, incorporating sustainable drainage
principles and including phasing/timing of provision and subsequent management and
maintenance arrangements, has been submitted to and approved by the local
planning authority. The scheme shall be implemented and thereafter managed in
accordance with the approved details.”

The plans submitted indicate the location of surface water and foul water pipes,
connection points, manhole locations, inspection chamber locations, rodding eye
locations, highway gullies, shared geo-celluar soakaway location and domestic geo-
cellular locations.

Technical drawings submitted show the construction detail of the proposals, including
the design of manholes, inspection chambers, bedding and concrete surround details,
catch-pit design and geo-celluar design details.

Technical calculations for the capacity of the drainage system have been provided
which include porosity test results, summary of methodology and legislative
requirements, methodology of assessment, rainfall data, design data for the water
storage cull soakaway, filter drain design for a range of storm severities (1 in 10 year
return period storm through to 1 in 100 year return period storm).

Details of the phasing/timing of provision and management and maintenance
arrangements have been provided. It is intended to commence the installation of the
main drainage on 24/9/18 for a 22 week period, and works on individual plots will
continue on a rolling programme for 2 years.

The long term management and maintenance of the foul drainage system will be
transferred to Dwr Cymru by agreement under Section 104 of the Water Industry Act
1991. Similarly management and maintenance of the surface water in the highway
(including the geocelluar soakaway under the public open space) and surface water
drainage outside of the plot boundaries will be adopted by Denbighshire County
Council by agreement under Section 38 of the Highway Act 1980.

1.2 Description of site and surroundings

1.2.1

1.2.2

The site is located on the south eastern fringe of Denbigh. It is bound to the north
west by Whitchurch Road and to the south west by Old Ruthin Road. To the east of
the site are open fields, and immediately south of the site is Brookhouse Chapel. To
the west is residential development at Karen Court, Llys and other dwellings along
Old Ruthin Road and Whitchurch Road.

The site slopes upwards from south to north, and at present is pasture land. The site
boundaries are currently defined by hedgerows.

Page 26



1.2.4 A public footpath runs along the eastern boundary of the site from opposite
Brookhouse Chapel up to the Eglwys Wen Farm complex.

1.3 Relevant planning constraints/considerations
1.3.1  The site is allocated for housing in the adopted Denbighshire Local Development
Plan.

1.3.2 A Site Development Brief was adopted in March 2016 by the Council for the two
allocated sites in this location, i.e. Cae Topyn and the site immediately east of
Brookhouse Chapel.

1.4 Relevant planning history
1.4.4 Planning permission for the development of the site was refused at planning
committee in April 2017. The decision was subsequently appealed and allowed by the
Planning Inspectorate following a Public Inquiry. The decision permitting the
development was issued in September 2017.

1.5 Developments/changes since the original submission
1.5.4 Following advice from Highway Engineers, and external consultants, the dimensions
of a number of pipes in the surface water drainage system have been increased to
prevent surcharging in a 1 in 100 storm event. In addition design changes have been
discussed and agreed relating to the landscape bund to the road side of the surface
water storage area.

1.6 Other relevant background information
1.6.4 None.

DETAILS OF PLANNING HISTORY:

2.2 01/2016/0374 - Erection of 75 no. dwellings, together with associated roads, open space and
related works. REFUSED by COMMITTEE 21/4/2017 on the basis of unacceptable impact
upon highway safety and an unacceptable impact upon the character and appearance of the
area. ALLOWED on appeal.

RELEVANT POLICIES AND GUIDANCE:

The main planning policies and guidance are considered to be:

3.2 Denbighshire Local Development Plan (adopted 4™ June 2013)
Policy RD1 — Sustainable development and good standard design
Policy VOEG6 — Water management

Supplementary Planning Guidance
Supplementary Planning Guidance Note: Residential Development

3.3 Government Policy / Guidance
Planning Policy Wales (Edition 9) November 2016
Development Control Manual November 2016
Technical Advice Note 15 — Development and Flood Risk (2004)

3.4 Other material considerations

MAIN PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS:

In terms of general guidance on matters relevant to the consideration of a planning application,
Planning Policy Wales Edition 9, 2016 (PPW) confirms the requirement that planning applications

'should be determined in accordance with the approved or adopted development plan for the
area, unless material considerations indicate otherwise' (PPW section 3.1.3). PPW advises that

Page 27



material considerations must be relevant to the regulation of the development and use of land in
the public interest, and fairly and reasonably relate to the development concerned (PPW section
3.1.4).

Development Management Manual 2017 states that material considerations can include the
number, size, layout, design and appearance of buildings, the means of access, landscaping,
service availability and the impact on the neighbourhood and on the environment (DMM section
9.4).

The following paragraphs in Section 4 of the report therefore refer to the policies of the
Denbighshire Local Development Plan, and to the material planning considerations which are
considered to be of relevance to the proposal.

4.2 The main land use planning issue in relation to the application is considered to be:

4.2.1 The acceptability of the drainage proposals

4.2.2 In relation to the main planning consideration;

Local Development Plan Policy RD 1 test (xi) requires that development satisfies
physical or natural environmental considerations relating to drainage and liability to
flooding.

Planning Policy Wales 3.1.4 confirms that factors to be taken into account in making
planning decisions (material considerations) must be planning matters; that is, they must
be relevant to the regulation of the development and use of land in the public interest,
towards the goal of sustainability. The drainage / flooding impacts of a development
proposal are a material consideration.

Planning Policy Wales Section 12.4.1 states ‘The adequacy of water supply and the
sewage infrastructure are material in considering planning applications and appeals.’

TAN 15 recognises that all types of land use change will impact on the natural
hydrological cycle in one way or another and flooding is not confined to flood plains, as
heavy rain falling on waterlogged ground can cause localised flooding almost anywhere.
For this reason, TAN 15 states that development should not increase the risk of flooding
elsewhere. Runoff from developments in these areas can, if not properly controlled,
result in flooding at other locations and significantly alter the frequency and extent of
floods further down the catchment.

TAN15 also advises that consideration must also be given to maintaining the
effectiveness of any drainage system, including pipes. Systems must be able to cope
with severe rainfall/snowmelt events and provision must be made for long term
maintenance and renewal.

The detailed proposals for the drainage (foul and surface) at Cae Topyn seek to
demonstrate that the mechanism for disposing of foul sewage is acceptable and that
surface water can be dealt with adequately in a range of storm events without resulting in
run-off.

The technical details have been examined by Welsh Water, Denbighshire County
Council Highway Engineers, Flood Engineers and independent engineers (employed by
DCC Local Highway Authority). Following the requested submission of amendments to
the design and dimension of surface water drainage pipes, it has been agreed by the
relevant bodies that the proposed drainage details are acceptable.

With regard to the future management of the drainage systems, Dwr Cymru Welsh Water
and the Highway Officers are satisfied with the adequacy of the design. On that basis
they are prepared to adopt the relevant elements of the drainage system. As is usual on

Page 28



residential plots, the surface water drainage/soakaway for individual plots will remain the
responsibility of the house owner.

Based on the technical responses of Welsh Water, the Highway Officer and the Lead
Local Flood Engineer, it is considered that the proposals for dealing with foul and surface
water, and the long term maintenance arrangements put forward are acceptable. It is
therefore the opinion of officers that condition 8 of permission 01/2016/0374 should be
discharged.

Other matters

Well — being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015

The Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 imposes a duty on the Council
not only to carry out sustainable development, but also to take reasonable steps in
exercising its functions to meet its sustainable development (or well-being) objectives.
The Act sets a requirement to demonstrate in relation to each application determined,
how the development complies with the Act.

The report on this application has been drafted with regard to the Council’s duty and the
“sustainable development principle”, as set out in the 2015 Act. The recommendation
takes account of the requirement to ensure that present needs are met without
compromising the ability of future generations to meet their own needs. It is therefore
considered that there would be no significant or unacceptable impact upon the
achievement of well-being objectives as a result of the proposed recommendation.

5 SUMMARY AND CONCLUSIONS:

5.1 In recognising local concerns over the implications of the development, the responses
from the ‘technical’ consultees involved with the assessment of the proposed drainage
systems raise no objections. On this basis it is not considered there are any grounds to
resist the approval of the details.

RECOMMENDATION: APPROVE- subject to the following conditions:-

1. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in strict accordance with details shown
on the following submitted plans and documents unless specified as otherwise within any
other condition pursuant to this permission.

(i) Proposed site layout plan (drawing number 1218-P01 Rev K) received 22 June 2018
(ii) Proposed site layout plan (drawing number 1218-P02) received 22 June 2018

(iii) Drainage General arrangement 1 of 2 (drawing number 101 Rev A) received 22 June
2018

(iv) Drainage General arrangement 2 of 2 (drawing number 102 Rev A ) received 22 June
2018

(v) Drainage General arrangement 1 of 2 (drawing number 103) received 22 June 2018
(vi) Drainage General arrangement 2 of 2 (drawing number 104) received 22 June 2018
(vii) Drainage construction details (drawing number D05) received 22 June 2018

(viii) Construction details manhhole type 1B (drawing number D06) received 22 June 2018
(ix) Construction details manhhole type E (drawing number D07) received 22 June 2018
(x) Construction details Catchpit (drawing number D08) received 22 June 2018

(xi) Construction details Geocellular soakaway (drawing number D09) received 22 June 2018

(xii) Foul drainage windes long sections received 22 June 2018

(xiii) SW Windes long sections received 22 June 2018

(xiv) Location plan received 22 June 2018

The reason for the condition is:-

1. For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure a satisfactory standard of development.

Page 29



This page is intentionally left blank



WARD :

WARD MEMBER:

APPLICATION NO:

PROPOSAL:

LOCATION:

Llanarmon Yn lal / Llandegla
Councillor Martyn Holland
21/2018/0166/ PF

Erection of single storey rear extension

12 Bryn Artro Avenue Llanferres Mold

Page 31

Agenda Iltem 6



This page is intentionally left blank



H [ B | 20m |
= [ 00Tt 1

@The Byre

Track

Greenbank

Heatherbank

U Ty Coed

Dane Dale ‘%._; <

The Coach

House ﬂ

rvLﬁ Celyn '
-:r C
| @ﬂ@@bvn copynght d databa'ée nght/ ﬁm ﬁnaﬁpe Suney 100023408,
PO
211201810166 sir ddinbych %
Scale: 1:1250 denbighshire <@

Printed on: 22/8/2018 at 14:59 PM Page 33 © Denbighshire County Council



EXISTING FLOOR PLAN

Gt
uliom ey
o1pnis NpIH

ic 4
qimny

i .o.:ﬂ:«%w:,._“a.‘..—“m
S1epyale| 2P

v L0X3  BESS

WH }
Fo1
05 1

supjd Buysixg
.m.wzw?u:
‘anuaay opy udig Z|

apEg uodyiag .Adg

05 1 e

upjd 1004 punois) - Buysixg

/ AN HE

Page 34



ERSTING ELEVATIONS

ol

RENETEN mmU

L

DN T

T eyt
aEnay uepginog

Z0X3  BESS

WY
ron
goL |

suolna3a|g Buysix3

mh.Ech_._
anuaay opy ulig Z1

i
UONEIILRY) LAY

‘ajoog
[pnsIA [pulayx3 - Bulsix3g

0011 :8jpag

Z0 UOYOAS BPIS - BulsIxg

| Teoepuncig 4

19487 J001] sy A
009z

1
i P T PAstsaany  dik
/ rels

001 | 803§

L0 UoyDAS[3 SpIS - Buysixa

100-PUNCI

ge 35 ¥

T tene1s00 1

Pa

= B
. 1940140703 A
r6ls

001: | @O
UCHDA3|] D3y - Buysix3

ooppuncy Ak
1]

g (oAs1 001 jiny A
0wz

rp—— o x |
G T ]
—_

j5A9150A03 ik
ra2s



e 5 & “
Ny Id GESINE |

up|d 100[4 punois) - pasodoiy

TROPOSED FLOOR PLAN

el S ﬁ I 7
| w- llllllll
; i mt . . 7 - ; - I
4284101 20 BEIR TN IO O O i ©
! T© o
r i | Ep— |
J L0Td  BESS m lﬂ
s uayain
" 2000 \ :
:Weu ooloo N
05 -1 1
S{DNSIA
3 sub|d pasodoly
mw:w_:._u_._ [ Jreed " feee{ pgeeceeeeeen.
anuaAy opy uhig | = = =
— F= [ 1
_H H= _ abunoy | —=
== |
@ vary Bung ﬁ M v
e ol  —— |

Page 36



PROPOSEV ELlEVATIONS

S 4

O REH

@1y uapBnag

_L_r;N_U

J

Z07d  BESS

HOW
vy
0oL 1

SUQ)DAd|3 pasodolg
Vo D
53LAJUDJ}

‘anuaay oy udig Zi

g

R [0 (R £ SRS

uBwljiaia) ady

, 46‘#

& meﬂ 7&&

001 | 803§
Z0 UolPA3|3 apIS - pasodoiy

wogpunarn A
1]

T joreToofziey
005z

joan] toany ik
[£:%47

0011 @035
L0 UolPA3|3 3pIs - pasodold

4

10044PUNCI9

T enel oy i

Page 37 -

(9A0150AD7 il
L4

001 ;1 8pag
UoNDAS|] ID3Y - pasodold

T 0T T [ easmoy sy Ak
i =

1 jossjsosny e
v8Z5




Prorosep s ITE PLAN

—

W\MWMW\\\\\\\

-

unj4 9415 posodoiy

sos1ajuny]
SRUaAY Ofiy AN T

. Qmm.%,wm& /

——

O ISNI3LRI
aasodoud

LT R

up|d 9I - pasodoiy

Page 38



SITE PLAN OF PROPOSED EXTENSION AND ADJACENT PROPERTIES ANNOTATED TO
ILLUSTRATE THE 45 DEGREE GUIDE, AS APPLIED TO THE CASE

The annotated details have been drawn onto the submitted 1:250 scale site plan, which has been photoreduced to A4 size to fit the report.
The interpretation of the location of windows of adjoining dwellings is that of Officers from observation on site.

osed - Site Plan

B

£
icale

¥



WARD :

WARD MEMBER:

APPLICATION NO:

PROPOSAL.:

LOCATION:

APPLICANT:

CONSTRAINTS:

PUBLICITY
UNDERTAKEN:

Denise Shaw
Llanarmon Yn lal / Llandegla

Councillor Martyn Holland
21/2018/0166/ PF

Erection of single storey rear extension
12 Bryn Artro Avenue Llanferres Mold
Mrs S Harris

AONB

Site Notice - No

Press Notice - No
Neighbour letters - Yes

REASON(S) APPLICATION REPORTED TO COMMITTEE:

Scheme of Delegation Part 2

e Member request for referral to Committee

CONSULTATION RESPONSES:
LLANFERRES COMMUNITY COUNCIL
Original consultation response:
“The Community Council has discussed the above-mentioned application and would make the
following comment to the proposals:

Llanferres Community Council have concerns regarding the BRE daylight 45&25 degree test
regarding this extension and request that accurate measurements be taken to establish
whether they apply. If the extension does comply with the requirements of the test then the
council has no objection to the application. We would, however, bring to the planning officers
attention, the chimney from the solid fuel burner which seems to contravene building

regulations.

We would like to complain about the quality of the planning documents, especially as seen on
the website. We consider them totally inadequate with no meaningful measurements and

difficult to understand.”

Re-consultation response:

With reference to the above mentioned Planning Application, the Community Council have
received correspondence from neighbours situated on either side of this property.
Following discussions. The Community Council do not object to the proposal in principle
providing that the Planning Officer is satisfied that the plan meets the 45 degree rule.”

CLWYDIAN RANGE AND DEE VALLEY AREA OF OUTSTANDING NATURAL BEAUTY

JOINT COMMITTEE

“The Joint Committee has no objection to the proposed extension subject to the roof and wall
facing materials matching the existing.”
(Same response to original application and reconsultation)

RESPONSE TO PUBLICITY:

In objection

Representations received from:

Mrs E Cook, 10 Bryn Atro, Tafarn y Gelyn
Clir B Barton, Glan Alyn, Llanferres Road

Page 40



Mrs R Johnson, 14 Bryn Artro, Tafarn Y Gelyn

Summary of planning based representations in objection
Comments on original submission

Accuracy of plans:

Concern that plans do not accurately plot positioning of neighbouring properties - No’s 10 and
12 are in line with each other. Nos 14 and 16 are also in line with each other lying almost one

metre back from the rear from no 12. This has a major implication when utilising the 45 degree
guide. The distance between 10 and 12 is 1.8 metres, not the 2 metres shown on these plans.

Impact on residential amenity of neighbours:

Due to proximity to neighbouring properties and projection of extension, it would fail 45 degree
guide and therefore would have detrimental impact on neighbours in terms of loss of light /
maintaining sunlight and daylight (Proposed extension will be 0.9 metres from 10 Bryn Artro
Avenue and 1.0 metre from 14 Bryn Artro Avenue, this will effectively block the sunlight and
daylight to 40-50% of each rear garden); affect outlook and would have an overbearing impact
on neighbouring properties.

Loss of Garden Space / proximity to garden boundary:

Back gardens are shallow - SPG advises sufficient private garden space should be retained to
provide amenity for dwelling and to ensure enough space is kept between neighbouring
properties to avoid cramped form of development. SPG recommends a minimum garden depth
of 6m is retained — this would not be achieved.

Design:
Not subordinate in scale; out of keeping with neighbouring properties.

Summary of resubmission:

Accuracy of plans:
Note plans are more accurate than original drawings, but consider rear of neighbouring
properties are not accurately plotted.

Impact on residential amenity of neighbours:

Due to proximity to neighbouring properties and projection of extension, it would fail 45 degree
guide and therefore would have detrimental impact on neighbours in terms of loss of light /
maintaining sunlight and daylight.

At least 26% of the side of the proposed extension would be visible from centre point of
neighbouring properties

Would have a detrimental impact on early morning sun from west on No. 14 and mid-afternoon
and early evening sun from the east on No 10.

Windows / doors are proposed in side elevation which would face towards and overlook
neighbouring garden

Loss of Garden Space / proximity to garden boundary:

Back gardens are shallow, would leave rear garden cramped and over-crowded. Insufficient
garden depth retained.

Design:

Not subordinate in scale; out of keeping with neighbouring properties.

Overdevelopment of site- would result in a cramped, overcrowded feel to the area

Flue:
Concerned that smoke from flue would enter rear bedrooms of neighbouring properties.

EXPIRY DATE OF APPLICATION: 16/04/2018

EXTENSION OF TIME: 18/07/2018

Page 41



REASONS FOR DELAY IN DECISION (where applicable):

previous deferral by Committee for further information

additional information required from applicant

re-consultations / further publicity necessary on amended plans and / or additional
information

awaiting consideration by Committee

PLANNING ASSESSMENT:
1. THE PROPOSAL:
1.1 Summary of proposals

1.1.1

1.1.10

Consideration of the application was deferred at the April Planning Committee to allow
opportunity to seek clarification of points of detail arising from consultation and
neighbour responses. Revised plans have been submitted in June 2018 and a re-
consultation exercise has been carried out. Further revised plans have been
submitted on 21 August 2018 which sought to remove a previously proposed flue.

The proposal is for a single storey lean to extension to the rear of an existing two
storey detached dwelling, to provide additional living accommodation.

The extension would run the width of the dwelling (8.3 metres) and project 4.1 metres
out from the rear elevation. It would have a lean-to roof with an eaves height of 2.1
metres, rising to 3.5 metres where it meets the main rear wall of the dwelling.

The application form states the roof would be tiled and walls would have a rendered
finish.

Roof lights are proposed in the roof and full height windows / doors would be installed
in the rear elevation, looking out into the rear garden. No windows or doors are
proposed in the side elevations of the extension, but an additional window is proposed
at ground floor level on the existing gable wall facing No.10, to serve the kitchen, and
a new external door is proposed to serve the utility room, in the position of an existing
window in the gable facing the side of No.14.

The rear elevation would be some 5.5m from the rear garden boundary.

The proposal originally included the installation of a flue in connection with a wood-
burning stove. Following concerns by consultees, the flue has now been omitted from
the scheme as illustrated on the further revised plans received on 21 August 2018.

The proposed extension would be 0.9m from the side boundary with No.10, the
neighbouring property to the east. The boundary between the two properties is a 1.2m
high wooden fence with a curved trellis above, which rises to approximately 1.6m at
its highest point.

The proposed extension would be 1.2m from the shared boundary with No. 14, the
neighbouring property to the west. The boundary between the two properties is a
wooden fence, approximately 2.1m in height, and there are a number of shrubs / trees
alongside the fence within the garden of No.14 which are well in excess of the height
of the fence.

Plans of the proposed extension and the relationship between the properties are
provided at the front of the report.

1.2 Description of site and surroundings

1.2.1

The site is occupied by an existing modern detached two-storey dwelling, which is
one of eight detached dwellings fronting the northern side of Bryn Artro Avenue,
which is within the hamlet of Tafarn y Gelyn. The dwellings have been erected over
time as replacements for older timber built chalets.

Page 42



1.2.2 There are dwellings on either side of the application site, with No. 10 to the east and
No. 12 to the west. Wooden fences demark the side boundaries with each property,
and to the rear of the site are open fields.

1.2.3 The rear gardens of all the Bryn Artro dwellings are relatively shallow, as can be
noted from the location plans at the front of the report. The existing rear elevation of
the dwelling is approximately 9 metres from the rear garden boundary.

1.3Relevant planning constraints/considerations
1.3.1  The site is outside of any development boundary as defined in the Local Development
Plan.

1.3.2 The site is within the Clwydian Range and Dee Valley Area of Outstanding Natural
Beauty.

1.4Relevant planning history
1.4.1 Permission for a replacement dwelling on the plot was granted in 2005.

1.5Developments/changes since the original submission
1.5.1 Revised plans have been submitted following concerns raised by the Community
Council and individuals regarding the accuracy of the plans.
1.5.2 Following re-consultation responses, further revised plans were received which
removed the flue.

1.6 Other relevant background information
1.6.1  Following Community Council and private individual concerns regarding the accuracy
of the submitted plans, revised plans have been submitted which the agent has
confirmed are based on site measurements rather than Ordnance Survey Maps.
Officers have also visited the site and consider the revised plans accurately reflect the
position of the dwelling in relation to the site and to the neighbouring properties.

1.6.2 ltis to be noted that permitted development rights have not been removed or
restricted at the application site, and therefore standard rights to extend in
accordance with national legislation apply.

1.6.3 In respect of the proposed extension, the relevance of the above is that if the
projection of the extension was reduced by 0.1m / 10cm (approximately 4 inches) so
that it would project no more than 4m from the rear elevation, it would fall within
householder permitted development rights, and no planning permission would be
required. This is a relevant ‘fallback’ position which is referred to later in the report.

1.6.4 The original scheme included a domestic flue which projected 1.2m above the lean to
roof. As the site is within the AONB, permitted development rights do not extend to
the flue, and accordingly planning permission would be required for this element of
the proposal.

1.6.5 However, due to concerns raised relating to the flue and its impact on residential
neighbours, the agent has confirmed the applicant was happy to remove the flue from
the scheme and revised plans were subsequently submitted. The Community Council
and objectors have been sent a re-consultation letter to inform them of the further
revised plans. The re-consultation period was still outstanding at the time of writing
this report, and therefore any further responses received in relation to this application
will be reported on the ‘Late Sheets’ at the Planning Committee meeting.

2  DETAILS OF PLANNING HISTORY:
2.2 21/2004/1247. Demolition of existing 2-bed bungalow and erection of replacement two-
storey dwelling. Granted 04/03/2005

3 RELEVANT POLICIES AND GUIDANCE:

Page 43



The main planning policies and guidance are considered to be:

3.2Denbighshire Local Development Plan (adopted 4" June 2013)

Policy RD3 — Extensions and alterations to existing dwellings

Policy VOE 2 — Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty and Area of Outstanding Beauty

Supplementary Planning Guidance

Supplementary Planning Guidance Note: Clwydian Range and Dee Valley Area of Outstanding
Natural Beauty

Supplementary Planning Guidance Note: Residential Space Standards

Supplementary Planning Guidance Note: Residential Development

Government Policy / Guidance
Planning Policy Wales Edition 9 November 2016
Development Control Manual

MAIN PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS:

In terms of general guidance on matters relevant to the consideration of a planning application,
Planning Policy Wales Edition 9, 2016 (PPW) confirms the requirement that planning applications
'should be determined in accordance with the approved or adopted development plan for the
area, unless material considerations indicate otherwise' (Section 3.1.3). It advises that material
considerations ‘... must be planning matters; that is, they must be relevant to the regulation of
the development and use of land in the public interest, towards the goal of sustainability’ (Section
3.1.4).

The Development Management Manual 2016 states that material considerations can include the
number, size, layout, design and appearance of buildings, the means of access, landscaping,
service availability and the impact on the neighbourhood and on the environment (Section 9.4).

The following paragraphs in Section 4 of the report therefore refer to the policies of the
Denbighshire Local Development Plan, and to the material planning considerations which are
considered to be of relevance to the proposal.

4.2 The main land use planning issues in relation to the application are considered to be:

4.2.1 Principle

4.2.2 Visual amenity
4.2.3 Residential amenity

Other matters

4.31In relation to the main planning considerations:
4.3.1 Principle

Policy RD 3 relates specifically to the extension and alteration of existing dwellings,
and states that these will be supported subject to compliance with detailed criteria.
The Residential Development SPG offers basic advice on the principles to be
adopted when designing domestic extensions and related developments.
The principle of appropriate extensions and alterations to existing dwellings is
therefore acceptable. The assessment of the specific impacts of the development
proposed is set out in the following sections.

4.3.2 Visual Amenity
Criteria i) of Policy RD 3 requires the scale and form of the proposed extension or

alteration to be subordinate to the original dwelling, or the dwelling as it was 20 years
before the planning application is made.

Criteria i) of Policy RD 3 requires that a proposal is sympathetic in design, scale,
massing and materials to the character and appearance of the existing building.
Criteria iii) of Policy RD3 requires that a proposal does not represent an
overdevelopment of the site.

Policy VOE 2 requires assessment of the impact of development within or affecting
the AONB and AOB, and indicates that this should be resisted where it would cause

Page 44



43.3

unacceptable harm to the character and appearance of the landscape and the
reasons for designation.

The site is located within the AONB and therefore the impact of the proposals on
visual amenity and on the character and appearance of the AONB are therefore key
considerations.

The AONB Joint Committee has raised no objection to the proposal subject to wall
and roof materials matching the existing dwelling.

Following the submission of revised plans, the Community Council have withdrawn
their previous objection on visual amenity grounds.

Private individuals have responded to the original consultation and the re-consultation
on the revised plans and have raised concerns regarding the scale, design and
appearance of the extension - specifically that due to the relatively small size of the
back garden, the proposal would result in a cramped form of development.

The existing dwelling is a modern two-storey detached dwelling and the proposal is
for a single storey lean to extension to the rear which would project some 4.1m from
the rear elevation of the existing dwelling. The application documents indicate the
roof would be tiled and walls would have a rendered finish. The existing dwelling is a
modern house with rendered walls and a tiled pitched roof and Officers are of the
opinion that the extension proposed would be in keeping with the existing dwelling
and conditions could be applied to control the external finishes to be applied to the
extension in the interests of visual amenity.

It is also of relevance that there are already extensions to the rear of other Bryn Artro
Avenue properties. No.14, for example has a substantial conservatory at the rear.

The proposal originally included a chimney flue for a wood burning stove to be
installed, however following the submission of further revised plans, the flue has now
been omitted from the scheme.

With regards to the scale of the development, notwithstanding concerns raised by
private individuals, Officers consider the extension would be subordinate in scale and
form to the original dwelling. Whilst the rear garden area is relatively shallow, the rear
elevation of the proposed extension would be some 5.5m from the rear boundary and
therefore garden space would be retained to the rear, and there is also a parking /
garden area to the front of the dwelling. Accordingly, due to the scale of the
extension, it is not considered that the proposal would represent overdevelopment of
the plot.

In respecting the concerns raised by the Community Council and private individuals,
Officers would conclude that having regard to the design, siting, scale, massing and
materials of the proposed extension, in relation to the character and appearance of
the dwelling itself, the locality and landscape, it would not have an unacceptable
impact on visual amenity and would therefore be in general compliance with the tests
in the policies referred to.

Residential Amenity

Criteria iii) of Policy RD 3 requires that a proposal does not represent an
overdevelopment of the site.

Criteria vi) of Policy RD 1 requires that proposals do not unacceptably affect the
amenity of local residents and land users and provide satisfactory amenity standards
itself.

The Residential Development SPG states that no more than 75% of a residential
property should be covered by buildings.

The Residential Space Standards SPG specifies that 40m? of private external amenity
space should be provided as a minimum standard for residential dwellings.

Page 45



The Community Council had originally objected to the proposal on residential amenity
grounds, however following re-consultation on revised plans, the Community Council
have now withdrawn their previous objection, providing that ‘the Planning Officer is
satisfied that the plan meets the 45 degree rule’

Representations raising concerns on residential amenity impacts have been made by
neighbours and a private individual. The concerns focus on the impact of the proposal
in terms of overshadowing of neighbouring properties and gardens, effect on outlook
from neighbouring properties and overbearing impact. Issues have also been raised
regarding the reduction in the garden area of No.12 and failure to maintain a setback
distance of 6m from the extension to the rear garden boundary. Reference is made to
the application of the 45 / 25 degree guides in the Council’'s Supplementary Planning
Guidance; and it is contended that the proposal conflicts with the 45 degree guide as
‘up to 26% of the side of the proposed extension will be visible from the centre of the
centre point of the window of No.14’, and it will also fail the test in relation to the rear
French window of No.10.

In response to the detailed matters arising:-

25 degree guide
In noting reference to the 25 degree guide’ in the Residential Development

Supplementary Guidance, this is guidance applicable to situations where the rear of
properties face one another. This is not applicable in this instance as there are no
properties backing on to the proposed extension.

Accuracy of plans:

As noted earlier in the report, revised plans have been submitted which the agent has
confirmed are based on site measurements rather than Ordnance Survey maps.
Objectors commenting on the revised application still contest the plans do not
accurately show the positioning of neighbouring properties in relation to the proposed
extension, but based on Officer observations on a site visit, it is considered the plans
show the relationships between the application site and adjacent properties with
sufficient accuracy to allow a fair assessment to be made of the likely impacts of the
extension on them. Officers have also independently measured out the footprint of
the extension and the proximity to neighbouring boundaries, and consider the revised
plans represent these fairly.

Overshadowing and the 45 degree guide

With respect to rear extensions, the Residential Development SPG advises that one
of the main issues involved is the need to protect the amenities of occupiers of
dwellings immediately adjoining a proposed extension, in terms of protecting privacy,
maintaining sunlight and daylight and maintaining a reasonable outlook.

The Supplementary Guidance provides a tool to help assess whether a proposal
would have adverse impact on adjoining property in terms of overshadowing
habitable windows in neighbouring properties. This is referred to as the ‘45 degree
guide’.

The basis of the 45 degree guide is to project an imaginary line from the centre of the
nearest ground floor window of any habitable room in an adjoining property,
horizontally at a 45 degree angle. The guidance suggests that no part of the
proposed development should cross this line. The guidance is worded to contain an
element of flexibility and requires consideration of matters such as the direction of
sunlight and shadow fall predicted from the new development. The illustration below
helps to explain the principles of applying the 45 degree guide.

Page 46



Figure 5 457 guide

mid point of
window of

S
maximum extent of extension maximum extent of extension

Objectors to the application consider the proposal would fail the 45 degree guide.

In this case, in respecting the concerns expressed, the proposal is for a lean to single
storey extension, and based on Officers assessment of the location of windows in the
rear elevations of adjacent property and the position of the proposed extension, there
would appear to be no obvious conflict with the 45 degree guide. Officers have
provided an annotated plan at the front of the report which gives an impression of
how the guide would translate into the context of the application site.

In applying the guide, due account has also to be taken of other site features which
may have a bearing on and mitigate impacts. In this instance it is notable that there is
a 2 metre high screen fence along the boundary between Nos 12 and 14, with a
number of trees / shrubs within the garden of No.14 extending above the top of the
fence. The effect of these features would be to largely obscure views of the proposed
extension from the nearest rear windows of No.14, significantly mitigating the impact
of the extension.

In respect of No.10, the boundary fence with No.12 is at a lower height (1.6m), but
the proposed extension at No.12 would not project significantly beyond the 45 degree
line.

Having regard to the above considerations and the fact the proposed extension would
be on the northern side of the property, it is not considered it would give rise to
unreasonable loss of sunlight / overshadowing in respect of the neighbouring
occupiers.

Loss of garden space:

Objectors have also raised concerns that the rear gardens at Bryn Artro are already
shallow, and as a result of the development it would leave a cramped and over
crowed rear garden at No.12 with insufficient garden depth being retained.

Officers would acknowledge that the rear wall of the extension would be
approximately 5.5m from the rear garden boundary. However, the Residential Space
Standards SPG states that a minimum of 40 square metres of garden area / outdoor
amenity space should be provided to serve an individual dwelling, and does not set
minimum garden depths, etc. . In this case, in excess of 60 square metres of rear

Page 47



garden space would be retained and therefore Officers consider sufficient garden
area would be retained within in the site.

Overbearing impact

Guidance indicates overbearing impact on a neighbouring property should be
prevented, particularly if there are windows in the side elevation of an adjacent house
that the extension projects towards. Whilst it is not always possible to achieve in all
instances, a 1 metre gap should be retained wherever practical between an extension
and the site boundary.

In this case, the proposed extension would be set back 0.9m from the side boundary
with No. 10 and 1.2m from the side boundary with No.14. The proposal is also a
single storey lean-to extension which has a relatively low profile, and Officers do not
consider the proposal would give rise to an overbearing or cramping impact on
neighbouring properties.

Privacy / overlooking
The proposal is for a single storey extension and no windows or doors are proposed
in either side elevation of the extension.

Whilst a new doorway is proposed in the side elevation of the existing dwelling facing
the gable end of No.14, this is to replace an existing window opening, and would not
result in the potential for additional overlooking.

A new kitchen window is proposed in the side elevation of the existing dwelling,
facing the gable end of No.10. Given the position of the window, it is not considered
this would result in the potential for additional overlooking.

Officers are therefore satisfied the proposal would not result in any unacceptable
overlooking of neighbours or impinge on their privacy.

Flue

Concerns were raised regarding emissions from the proposed flue entering into
bedroom windows of neighbouring properties.

Following the submission of revised plans, the flue has now been removed.

The site is within the AONB, and therefore the flue does not benefit from permitted
development rights, and therefore should the flue be progressed in the future, the
Council would retain control over the siting of such a flue through the need for
planning permission.

Other matters

Fallback position

Officers consider the fall-back position is of some relevance in this instance. As noted
in paragraph 1.6.3 of the report, if the projection of the extension was reduced by
0.1m/10cm (approximately 4 inches) the proposal would fall within permitted
development rights and could therefore could be built without the need for planning
permission. As ‘permitted development’ tolerances effectively reflect a scale of
development considered reasonable by Government on dwellinghouses without the
need for formal permission, it suggests the impacts of an extension in the order of
0.1m larger than this size limitation would need to be significantly adverse to justify a
refusal of permission.

Well — being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015

The Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 imposes a duty on the
Council not only to carry out sustainable development, but also to take reasonable
steps in exercising its functions to meet its sustainable development (or well-being)

Page 48



objectives. The Act sets a requirement to demonstrate in relation to each application
determined, how the development complies with the Act.

The report on this application has been drafted with regard to the Council’s duty and
the “sustainable development principle”, as set out in the 2015 Act. The principles of
sustainability are promoted in the Local Development Plan and its policies and are
taken into account in the consideration of development proposals. The
recommendation takes account of the requirement to ensure that present needs are
met without compromising the ability of future generations to meet their own needs.

It is therefore considered that there would be no significant or unacceptable impact
upon the achievement of well-being objectives as a result of the proposed
recommendation.

5 SUMMARY AND CONCLUSIONS:

5.1 In respecting the concerns raised by the Community Council and private individuals,
for the reasons highlighted in the report, having regard to the detailing of the
proposals, the potential impacts on the locality, and the particular tests of the relevant
policies, the proposal is considered to be acceptable and is recommended for grant.

RECOMMENDATION: GRANT subiject to the following condition(s) :-

1. The development to which this permission relates shall be begun no later than 12" September,
2023.

2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in strict accordance with details shown on
the following submitted plans and documents unless specified as otherwise within any other
condition pursuant to this permission:

(i) Existing Elevations (Drawing No. EX02 Revision A) received 21 August 2018

(i) Proposed Elevations (Drawing No. PL0O2 Revision C) received 21 August 2018

(iii) Existing Ground Floor Plan (Drawing No. EX01 Revision A) received 21 August 2018
(iv) Proposed Ground Floor Plan (Drawing No. PLO1 Revision C) received 21 August 2018
(v) Existing Site & Location Plan (Drawing No. EX03 Revision A) received 12 June 2018
(vi) Proposed Site Plan (Drawing No. PLO8 Revision A) received 21 August 2018

3. The materials and finishes of the external surfaces of the walls and roofs of the extension hereby
permitted shall be of the same texture, type and colour as those on external walls and roofs of
the existing building.

The reasons for the conditions are:-
1: To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

2: For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure a satisfactory standard of development.
3: In the interests of visual amenity and to conserve the character and appearance of the AONB.

Page 49



This page is intentionally left blank



WARD :

WARD MEMBER(S):

APPLICATION NO:

PROPOSAL:

LOCATION:

Agenda Item 7

Llanarmon Yn lal / Llandegla
Clir Martyn Holland
21/2018/0293/ PF

Demolition of porch and erection of an attached garage
(amedned scheme)

16 Rectory Lane Llanferres Mold

Page 51



This page is intentionally left blank



sgol Bro ~ Noreos

L
Famau LIar1fe|:rgalcsh:I %

D Path {um)

Bryn

e Heulog Q o
7 Ol E

The @ Q D = ~
~ (31T 8

The
White i
House @ne

Dallas Q /
Hilbre il
>4 /
Harris View Q JERN Lp
/ /

&2/

S

Cysgod y Fron

"
) U/

© Crown copyright and database rights 2017 Ordnance Suney 100023408.

21/2018/0293 sir ddlnbci;g&h %
Scale: 1:1250 denbighshire @&

County Council

Printed on: 21/8/2018 at 16:40 PM Page 53 © Denbighshire County Council



4

EXISTING §

l.a_ 10S o - _ mmom_...z EL _ . 28\5}..,8

10296 2GC10 *0) #LEYGs ZSCI0 9L — = o oy -
tve ool s1035 sy o3

anusiuld CPION 'PRoy uoydery ‘Bag uosy

a L 1

- SUOIDAR|] JDBY % Juol mr:m_xu
5 4 3 3d N 1 B N

uo|4 Aaang ot

seusajun|] ‘aup A10}osy 9|

= SN VYVayve— lIom Bumeyay pasodoly —
0011 21035 e B - -
uonoAes(3 Jpay bBunsixz 00171 @IPas

uold Bunsix3z

001 |05
uonoas|3 juoly Bunsixy

3
A
G

PR i TR L

_ (L, L1

NG R XA gy
/m

A TR s N R e A

2
-
£

4
N

]
7
M

il

i
L
|’||
|

uﬂ\l A



EX\STING S1DE @tevATION +
SeCTIiON

Existing Side Elevation
Scale 1:100

E; TR
/ ————— R AR
— AL AL L L LS L L e AL S el S
Section Through Site
Scole 1:100
Staotus
Rev Details _lDate DrawnlChk’d
Project . e
o Proposed Retaining Wall - A DA MS =
16 Rectory Lane Lianferres
y € err C 0 N 8 U L T I N G
LS Existing Side Elevation E N G 1 N E E R 8§
& Section Through Site - L T D
Fron Deg, Clayton Road, Mold. Flintshire
Cod Rev 5‘;’521!.”:? L ‘;"“ Tel.: 01352 754334 Fax: 01352 756201
Date Drawn Checked Approved Project Ref. Drg. No, Rev.
Jon 2018 SGL ™ 15065 S02 A

Page o5



P20 P0SEDd ELEVATIONS

.&zu_ 10d on_bug S90Sl 1oy 1aelasg Pascuddy < Pey2aus) s :-Ea_ w.ON\_o\n._uoa
10Z9GL 2ZEE10 X0 HEEPGL 2EC10 1) A T =
= 00151 Brose ]
BmsILL Piow “pooy uoioly Bag uouy Apmaaug ybnosy) uoljdeg
a 19 % suonpas|3 spiS
& ¥ % 3 N I 9 N 1 'Jpay ‘jJuos4 pasodolg o
9 N 1 4L 1 0 B N 0 2 s010u01] %
Juopy ‘aup) Asoyoey gi
- SNVYQAQV = nom Buubyey pasodouy _—

0011 9joag
uonoAs|3 opis pesodoly

Q01-y 9oag
uonoAs|3 juosy pasodolg

L

]
e e

l

i S D iy et R

0014 Bjoag
uonoA3(3 4D3y pasodoiyg

A e o T N

——

Tl
%_ .._.
|

B e

DOLL b
Aomaau( ybnosy) uonoeg

N ok S AT S e B R P R Y

R s R T
3

mil

| —

oL o

Pﬂgc rojv




e siaawnbush

HOT9SL TSC10 04 pCTRSL ZSTID 9]
saysjuny PIoY ‘Pocy wadoyy "bag ucsy
-—a 1 1

s 4 3 3 HN 1 o N 3
2 ¥ I 1 1T A &8 H 0o 2

—= S NVQAQYVY =

SuDjg oy Buunoay
/ uoljppunoy % 100y

"ML
sauayuo) sup Aoyosy 9|
nom buwoisy pasodoay _z_eJ
SUYOP woynag JW
—F.,._m-

Bumpig Bunpopm |puoisimcy

snugg
Toees
<o

MBACA W § uTIOW O] 830) LOSIUG i
e Sustits jo0 PEng 108 LAOTDW PmSe Wi
buuseurbu) a0 WuGiZ ¥4 ) B sauby
“ayrsads o gom

Buunas PRI (3 #OU0Y PIDPUOH KO}
9Mb0 wsuGLE £) WX Py =g buasewdu)
dbep wwrly #q of = wasy buunbiy e
‘abm wepsng  Aossaug

R ]
uDld uonDpuUnoy
/ 1om Buuoiey pesdosg

WAl WU R NNTW O] 830} yenaag ety

so= bunDias o ppng poe dasow puos g
Burassubul daep wawg? 89 O} e Jeube
WM upiony [/ Koasaig =

"

P TN |
Tlnlii \/ |mm

.Eouoh.. oo!_.Eu 08 ... i

a20pnt Buitsd &) baaseny — wtug oy

Vi

udld pasdaig

e

5 | Ay

Page_P

_ (=13
_ PAESEA Lgeutudbw e §) sp0a o}
AT D wAg) 10 PP 8008000 BDw
Upa 81T §0) W) PO 8 ) SPOs
_ [} worloubasp ouOW Ui 4501 eoRy f_.
ROPVRIE MOT GMP WUGIZ 89 O] WoeIAG = v
siop v ) Bunesys Sjaod 4' uund 450q Gaeuilu) -
ks Buussoa Ly PAM3 ¥ ©) MAECD DRIBUY ) _
W /HN00) 19 (BT Sanmeasd Bunbeq purast
.!8 b s0) paubaip uBeq sr0y -co;o!.ml.. [} _ T A
i iH ‘ NP0 KA
oov ueepy ‘00 wAwDSS um ‘B0 10pUrE O O s WRON e
84 ) Sdo) NeWeIO Sy “Ti _ 09 SBROIL Of Paddiy bBnuea Ny PAPaoly Slswsy usnpOj ‘Ao soks aboupg
woileg pup day Op QoS mEi) WWOE] 30 W00 WO WS 1M = WALGT | ‘PascHIE0 Jirwes 20 w30 mcbebby T
Pros )2 BAVE i) 1= PeDO0] 84 Of Ki0g- S10M _ P MG § RO SIvmuey usupg] U
39 01 JADD WNWSISRAbN | Gy 20pBYy # a0} = |
P0E prad ybay 820080 W Errr T E i
s n #3 0 opnay gl _ I
o) o
*iop buitigu © g8 eaind 2§ A ssedoy wok Lpapd unugry _
o5t g L - o s L] —i.lu —_—— — — o — —
) el
PRULUE) #8 O) CRuDPUod punad sasrasbbo ' —_— e — o — i
wou #y §2r5SE 7Y .nq-wuc nﬂuoﬂ.a& :!u.” ° | S b — — ——
1L b a0 —— - _—
wu UT ympp 03 WOIPICH R =0y ¥ Buipied 40 sutmidunl 3o buumposs i
aso0a0q PISOPLOD o A o vorea ¢ MU/RLYD §E APEINEUOY UL (e Vusasat 01 D40 BN B WLE SuomILIES L
PUD pRiowds 89 &) UNDWIO) @ O I duy g ‘PRADIGAG JOPIIE NIOM PYOS HO'P FUOPURIS F Se0l30 Liaumd0 Mt O) PRIRIEWR # Oy 1
’ “freriy BrRwH B O] - LOEYING -« Dby Wi taoe Luotow mpw § bugina I 1
o 18q Boweq) swos Lojnsps wepuo) wawiaq Suon 4o |0 pAIEdD sysuss ¥
@ o w&-ﬂ v Ay payos Jooud Bq O bMRdy (G 20 ROIMUGD ¥ ata peubueas duiod ! |
TRBUAPL W M SuOTLRED Iy Cp gy | |
RUCTDpUn) A |
Syl JO BEIANAWED 8] Joexd BIR BE PhuGD _ |
PUD PEYMD BG [1ROUE U0 tbumDAD H1IMIMID B =
Wiy ulIb} 89 O} TLOMURLD N0 BualeE ¥ [ v
) sy08 b o § . i
o) Mud NS U PRy z.uw. o!:-ur_.ﬂ z . ...E\Hoa ,n.-__.—._u...u..v..o.c.o.u..hos““ﬁa "o _._.
“Sutesbdnoady. besosddo sopus J Ll 1 b M [T
e 1a00) tHUARD E23at puD S133IYLD HY'T PIPRUTIS 3ppnudy ualf)) ‘djab3 Joad N = —
o ol b WWEZ | Pesapdide dyurs 10 3000 81088.55y l
a 33w pod o busap & g A
s uonIuNved w bbb aq 03 i FrCPv sy beis i Rt i . =gy =
sajoN sy Apuby ¥ o) - STIA Trhpdixd MmN | ¥ | 1
Project Rel. Toug. wie. [
N
$310 5 2 _ 15065 | W01 A




EXISTING + PROPOSTD SITE PLA

|..S~_ 101 “oN .mL mmomw Y _ulo.u_ 35&9— . PaRIsy ) L uanxy n—ON\___...\n-__So
102962 2610 03 vECPSL Z6T10 113 | B F o, ﬁ T ey
2lusjuls "plop ‘pooy uoAoy]) ‘bag uoiy
_—a I ] —
E ¥4 I I N I 9 H 1 SUuD|d %30(g % uonpoO ING o
D H B
e e o Saltajuo)] ‘aupn Aojaay 9|
- SNV AY » llom Buwioyay pasodouy pvtna]
00G-1 9j8ag
unj4 3o0|g

0061 3joas
il uold UOIDI0T BYS

Page 58




Denise Shaw

WARD : Llanarmon Yn lal / Llandegla
WARD MEMBER(S): Clir Martyn Holland
APPLICATION NO: 21/2018/0293/ PF
PROPOSAL: Demolition of porch and erection of an attached garage
(amedned scheme)
LOCATION: 16 Rectory Lane Llanferres Mold
APPLICANT: Mr Graham John
CONSTRAINTS: PROW
AONB
PUBLICITY Site Notice - No
UNDERTAKEN: Press Notice - No

Neighbour letters - Yes

REASON(S) APPLICATION REPORTED TO COMMITTEE:
Scheme of Delegation Part 2
e Recommendation to grant / approve — Town / Community Council objection

CONSULTATION RESPONSES:
LLANFERRES COMMUNITY COUNCIL
“With reference to the above-mentioned Planning Application, the Community Council objects
to this revised proposal. Its views are basically the same given when objecting to the original
application 21/2017/0928.
There is a shared drive with No. 18, which has been in existence for over fifty years. Rights of
way, with unhindered access, have therefore been established with mutual benefits to both
parties. This revised proposal would result in this shared drive being divided into two separate
drives with a height difference of over a metre and the access width halved.
The shared drive is by a pinch point in Rectory Lane, where the road not only narrows to 2.5
metres but is also at its steepest incline

Currently vehicles visiting either 16/18 Rectory Lane must enter across the neighbouring part of
the shared drive. Manoeuvring requires crossing the centre line of the shared drive. The
opening onto the shared drive also allows vehicles to pass each other in the lane, as the one
going uphill can usually pull onto it.

This proposal would result in manoeuvring within No. 18 extremely difficult if not impossible, as
would access by emergency and service vehicles.

The Amended Scheme therefore clearly fails criteria vii) of LDP Policy RD 1.

The excavation to build the attached garage would compromise the foundations of No. 18.

As the Amended Scheme has failed to meet any of our initial objections, the Community
Council strongly opposes the application in its current form.”

CLWYDIAN RANGE AND DEE VALLEY AREA OF OUTSTANDING NATURAL BEAUTY
JOINT ADVISORY COMMITTEE

“The Joint Committee has no objection to this application but would recommend that the front
retaining wall should be faced in natural local stone to reflect the traditional character of
boundary treatments in this locality.”

DENBIGHSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL CONSULTEES -
Highways Officer
No objection.

Page 59



RESPONSE TO PUBLICITY:

In objection
Representations received from:

D Jones, 18 Rectory Lane, Llanferres

Summary of planning based representations in objection:

Does not consider the amended application overcomes the previous reason for refusal.

The shared driveway is a feature common to all other properties situated on this part of Rectory
Lane which is the steepest and narrowest section. The amendments suggested would not
guarantee safe and convenient access and egress for No18, particularly for larger vehicles e.g.
service or emergency vehicles. The shared driveways have been a necessary feature of these
properties since 1964.

Also concerned that the quantity of material to be excavated may lead to the instability of the
property and drive.

Visual impact of the proposed wall would also be detrimental to the existing open aspect of the

property.

EXPIRY DATE OF APPLICATION: 29/08/2018

REASONS FOR DELAY IN DECISION:

awaiting consideration by Committee

PLANNING ASSESSMENT:
1. THE PROPOSAL:
1.1 Summary of proposals

1.11

1.1.2

The proposal is for the demolition of an existing porch and the erection of an attached
garage to the side of 16, Rectory Lane in Llanferres.

The existing driveway is at a higher ground level to the main dwelling and the
proposal requires excavation works to lower the ground level of the existing drive and
a new brick retaining wall is also proposed, which would be set 0.6m off the shared
boundary with the neighbouring property to the west (no 18).

Section plans have been provided which show the proposed changes in ground
levels. The section plans show the proposed driveway would be some 1m lower than
existing ground levels (see details of the proposal at the front of this report).

1.2 Description of site and surroundings:

1.2.1

1.2.2

1.2.3

The site is a detached dwelling within a ribbon of residential development along the
southern side of Rectory Lane, Llanferres, with properties along the lane all being
detached but of a variety of forms and appearances.

Rectory Lane is a sloping road and therefore the dwellings along the lane are set at
different levels as the road ascends from A494 to the east.

The dwelling at no 16 is set at a lower ground level to the neighbour to the west (no
18), however there is a shared driveway which serves both the properties which is set
at the same ground level as No 18. As such, the existing driveway adjacent to the
dwelling where the proposed attached garage extension is proposed to be built is
approx. 1m higher level than compared to the ground levels immediately adjacent to
the dwelling.

Page 60



2,

1.24

The retaining wall would be 1.6m above proposed ground levels on the applicant’s
side of the boundary, and 0.6m above the ground level of the neighbour’s driveway.

1.3 Relevant planning constraints/considerations

1.3.1

The site is within the development boundary for Llanferres as shown on the Local
Development Plan proposals map and is located within the AONB.

1.4 Relevant planning history

1.4.1

1.4.2

Planning permission for a garden store building in the rear garden granted in 2014.

The proposal is an amended scheme following a refusal to grant planning permission
in November 2017. Section plans had not been provided with this application and the
submission had failed to acknowledge there was any difference in ground levels with
no details provided in relation to the excavation works or retaining walls. Due to the
lack of information, the application was refused.

1.5 Developments/changes since the original submission

1.5.1

1.5.2

The Community Council and the neighbour have both referred to the driveway as
being ‘a shared drive’ in their consultation responses, with both parties having a right
of way over the respective neighbour’s driveway. Whilst the existing driveways at no
16 and 18 have the same ground level and currently have a shared surface with no
wall or fence in situ to delineate the boundary, this does not infer the driveways are in
shared ownership.

The applicant’s agent has checked the deeds to the property and has confirmed the
driveways are not in shared ownership, and there is not covenant on the land which
conveys any third party a legal right over the land. Therefore whilst the current
situation is that each householder can drive over a section of their neighbour’s drive
when accessing and egressing their own driveways, this is an informal arrangement
and neither neighbour has any legal right over the land outside their ownership.

1.6 Other relevant background information

1.6.1

None.

DETAILS OF PLANNING HISTORY:
2.1 21/2014/0033/PF Erection of a block building to the rear of the dwelling for storage of garden

equipment. Granted under delegated powers on 6" March, 2014.

2.221/2017/09287?PF Demolition of porch and erection of an attached garage. Refused under

delegated powers on 17" November, 2017. The reason for refusal was as follows:

1.

It is the opinion of the Local Planning Authority that the proposed garage extension

could not be facilitated without excavating and re-profiling the existing driveway which would
result in the existing shared drive being subdivided to form two separate drives with differing
ground levels. Without detailed information of the engineering operations required to excavate
and re-profile the driveway, it is considered that insufficient information has been provided to
demonstrate that, as a result of the development adequate manoeuvring space would be
retained to allow vehicles to safety access and egress the shared driveway serving the
application site and the driveway serving the neighbouring property, No 18 Rectory Lane, and
therefore the proposal has the potential to adversely impact on highway safety contrary to
Denbighshire Local Development Plan Policy RD1 vii) and the advice and guidance contained
in Section 8 of Planning Policy Wales (Edition 9, November 2016) Technical Advice Note 18:
Transport.

3. RELEVANT POLICIES AND GUIDANCE:

The main planning policies and guidance are considered to be:
3.1 Denbighshire Local Development Plan (adopted 4" June 2013)

Policy RD1 — Sustainable development and good standard design

Page 61



Policy RD3 — Extensions and alterations to existing dwellings
Policy VOE2 - Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty and Area of Outstanding Beauty
Policy ASA3 — Parking standards

Supplementary Planning Guidance

Supplementary Planning Guidance Note: Clwydian Range and Dee Valley Area of Outstanding
Natural Beauty

Supplementary Planning Guidance Note: Parking Requirements In New Developments
Supplementary Planning Guidance Note: Residential Development

Supplementary Planning Guidance Note: Residential Space Standards

Government Policy / Guidance
Planning Policy Wales Edition 9 November 2016
Development Control Manual

MAIN PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS:

In terms of general guidance on matters relevant to the consideration of a planning application,
Planning Policy Wales Edition 9, 2016 (PPW) confirms the requirement that planning applications
'should be determined in accordance with the approved or adopted development plan for the
area, unless material considerations indicate otherwise' (Section 3.1.3). It advises that material
considerations ‘... must be planning matters; that is, they must be relevant to the regulation of the
development and use of land in the public interest, towards the goal of sustainability’ (Section
3.1.4).

The Development Management Manual 2016 states that material considerations can include the
number, size, layout, design and appearance of buildings, the means of access, landscaping,
service availability and the impact on the neighbourhood and on the environment (Section 9.4).

The following paragraphs in Section 4 of the report therefore refer to the policies of the
Denbighshire Local Development Plan, and to the material planning considerations which are
considered to be of relevance to the proposal.

4.1 The main land use planning issues in relation to the application are considered to be:

Principle

Visual amenity (including AONB)
Residential amenity

Highways (including access and parking)

Rl ol ol o
— — — —
rwh

Other matters

4.2 In relation to the main planning considerations:
4.2.1 Principle

Policy RD 3 relates specifically to the extension and alteration of existing dwellings,
and states that these will be supported subject to compliance with detailed criteria.
Policy RD1 supports development proposals within development boundaries
providing a range of impact tests are met.
The Residential Development SPG offers basic advice on the principles to be
adopted when designing domestic extensions and related developments.
The principle of appropriate extensions and alterations to existing dwellings is
therefore acceptable. The assessment of the specific impacts of the development
proposed is set out in the following sections.

4.2.2 Visual Amenity
Criteria i) of Policy RD 3 requires the scale and form of the proposed extension or

alteration to be subordinate to the original dwelling, or the dwelling as it was 20 years
before the planning application is made.

Criteria ii) of Policy RD 3 requires that a proposal is sympathetic in design, scale,
massing and materials to the character and appearance of the existing building.

Page 62



423

Criteria iii) of Policy RD3 requires that a proposal does not represent an
overdevelopment of the site.

Criteria i) of Policy RD 1 requires that development respects the site and
surroundings in terms of siting, layout, scale, form, character, design, materials,
aspect, micro-climate and intensity of use of land/buildings and spaces around and
between buildings.

Criteria vi) of Policy RD1 requires that development proposals do not affect the
amenity of local residents and land users and provide satisfactory amenity standards
itself.

The site is within the AONB. Policy VOE2 seeks to restrict development proposals
which would have an adverse impact on the character and setting of the AONB

The impact of the proposals on visual amenity is therefore a basic test in the policies
of the development plan.

The impact of the proposals on visual amenity is therefore a basic test in the policies
of the development plan.

Representations on the visual amenity impacts have been made by Community
Council, the AONB Joint Advisory Committee and the neighbour. The representations
focus on the changes to the ground levels and proposed retaining wall rather than the
proposed garage extension.

Officers would consider the proposed attached garage is subordinate in scale and
form and is sympathetically designed so that it is in keeping with the character of the
existing house and locality.

The AONB have no objection to the proposal, but consider due to the setting within
the AONB, the front retaining wall should be faced in natural local stone to reflect the
traditional character of boundary treatments in this locality. Other representations
consider the proposed wall would also be detrimental to the existing open aspect of
the neighbouring property.

Whilst the driveway’s serving a number of properties along Rectory Lane have a
similar arrangement to the site, i.e. adjoining driveways with a shared surface and no
boundary treatments, Officers would note that properties along the lane consist of a
variety of forms and appearances and a number of the properties towards the end of
the lane have driveways which are at different ground levels to the neighbouring
property with a variety of boundary treatments. The current driveway arrangement is
therefore not considered to be a unique characteristic of the area.

The AONB have requested the retaining wall is finished with local stone. Whilst the
site is within the AONB, it is nevertheless a modern house within a built up residential
area and Officers would note the boundary treatments along Rectory Lane are not
uniform and consist of a mix of stone walls, fences, hedgerows and brick walls, and
therefore Officers do not consider there is sufficient justification in this instance to
require the wall to be stone facing.

Having regard to the design, siting, scale, massing and materials of the proposed
extension, in relation to the character and appearance of the dwelling itself, the
locality and landscape, it is considered the proposals would not have an unacceptable
impact on visual amenity and would therefore be in general compliance with the tests
in the policies referred to above.

Residential Amenity

Criteria iii) of Policy RD 3 requires that a proposal does not represent an
overdevelopment of the site.

Criteria vi) of Policy RD 1 requires that proposals do not unacceptably affect the
amenity of local residents and land users and provide satisfactory amenity standards

Page 63



424

itself.

The Residential Development SPG states that no more than 75% of a residential
property should be covered by buildings. The Residential Space Standards SPG
specifies that 40m? of private external amenity space should be provided as a
minimum standard for residential dwellings.

Representations on the residential amenity impacts have been made by the
Community Council and the neighbour regarding the impact of the excavation works
on the foundations and stability of the neighbouring property.

However, development close to a party wall including issues relating to structurally
stability are covered by the Party Wall Act and Officers would therefore consider the
issues raised regarding structural stability to be a civil matter rather than a planning
issue.

The proposed single storey pitched roof attached garage extension is subordinate in
scale and form and is sympathetically designed. The garage would have double
doors within the front elevation to access the garage and double door to the rear to
access the garage from the rear of the property. There are no windows proposed
within the side elevation.

Having regard to the scale, location and design of the proposed development, it is
considered that the proposals would not have an unacceptable impact on residential
amenity, and would therefore be in general compliance with the tests of the policies
referred to.

Highways (including access and parking)

Local Development Plan Policy RD 1 supports development proposals subject to
meeting tests (vii) and (viii) which oblige provision of safe and convenient access for a
range of users, together with adequate parking, services and manoeuvring space;
and require consideration of the impact of development on the local highway network.
Policy ASA 3 requires adequate parking spaces for cars and bicycles in connection
with development proposals, and outlines considerations to be given to factors
relevant to the application of standards. These policies reflect general principles set
out in Planning Policy Wales (Section 8) and TAN 18 — Transport, in support of
sustainable development.

Planning Policy Wales 3.1.4 confirms that factors to be taken into account in making
planning decisions (material considerations) must be planning matters; that is, they
must be relevant to the regulation of the development and use of land in the public
interest, towards the goal of sustainability. The highway impacts of a development
proposal are a material consideration

The existing driveway is currently set at a higher level to the main dwelling and is at
the same ground level as the drive serving the neighbouring property. The two
driveways have a shared surface and the boundary between the two properties is not
delineated by any boundary treatments.

The proposal also includes works to reduce the ground level of the existing driveway
by some 1m so that it is set at the same ground level as the dwelling, and a retaining
wall is proposed to be built along the length of the drive.

Highways Officers have been consulted on the application and have raised no
objection to the proposal.

The Community Council and the neighbour have raised concerns on highways
grounds.

Consultees have noted the driveways have a shared surface with no division and
currently vehicles visiting either 16 or 18 Rectory Lane must manoeuvre across the

Page 64



neighbouring part of the shared drive and the opening onto the shared drive also
allows vehicles to pass each other in the lane, as the one going uphill can usually pull
onto it.

As the proposal would result in this shared drive being divided into two separate
drives with a height difference of over a metre and the access width halved,
consultees consider the proposal would make manoeuvring within No. 18 extremely
difficult and adversely impact highway safety as they would not guarantee safe and
convenient access and egress.

As stated in paragraph 1.5 above, whilst the driveway has a shared surface it is not in
shared ownership, and the current arrangement whereby the respective neighbours
can drive over the neighbouring driveway is an informal arrangement and is not due
to any legal covenant or highway requirement.

Whilst Officers understand the concerns raised by the neighbour, it is noted that the
retaining wall would not be up to the boundary, but rather is proposed to be set 0.5m
in from the boundary leaving a strip of the applicant’s driveway at the existing ground
level, and the neighbour has further garden area to the front of their dwelling which
they could utilise to help them manoeuvre onto their drive should they require it.

The adjoining driveways of other properties along Rectory Lane are already divided
by boundary treatments and Officers would also note that, subject to height limits, the
applicant is also free to enclose their land with fences, walls and gates under
permitted development rights, so whist the current arrangement whereby both
neighbours can drive freely across both driveways is mutually convenient, there is no
planning reason to require the existing arrangement to be retained in perpetuity.

The Community Council also notes the driveway is by a pinch point in Rectory Lane,
and the drive at no 16 serves as a passing place for vehicles travelling up the hill.
Officers would respectfully point out that the driveways are within private ownership
and therefore should not be used as passing places by vehicles using the road. As
noted above, the applicant (and any other properties within Rectory Lane) could erect
a fence/wall along the front boundary under permitted development rights should they
wish to which would prevent the drive being used as a passing place.

Highways Officers have raised no objection to the proposal on highway safety
grounds.

Whilst the previous application was refused, the reason for refusal centred on the lack
of information and accordingly Officers could not conclude the proposal would not
adversely impact on highway safety. However, the current application is supported by
section plans and details of the positioning and height of the retaining wall and
therefore Officers consider the current scheme has provided sufficient information to
address the previous reason for refusal.

Therefore, whilst concerns raised by the Community Council and the neighbour are
acknowledged, Officers do not consider there is sufficient grounds to refuse planning
permission on highway safety grounds and the proposal is considered to be in
general compliance with the policies listed above.

Other matters

Well — being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015

The Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 imposes a duty on the
Council not only to carry out sustainable development, but also to take reasonable
steps in exercising its functions to meet its sustainable development (or well-being)
objectives. The Act sets a requirement to demonstrate in relation to each application
determined, how the development complies with the Act.

Page 65



The report on this application has been drafted with regard to the Council’s duty and
the “sustainable development principle”, as set out in the 2015 Act. The principles of
sustainability are promoted in the Local Development Plan and its policies and are
taken into account in the consideration of development proposals. The
recommendation takes account of the requirement to ensure that present needs are
met without compromising the ability of future generations to meet their own needs.

It is therefore considered that there would be no significant or unacceptable impact upon
the achievement of well-being objectives as a result of the proposed recommendation.

5. SUMMARY AND CONCLUSIONS:
5.1 The application is an amended scheme following a previous refusal.

5.2 Notwithstanding the concerns raised by the Community Council and the neighbour and
having regard to the response of the Highway Officer, Officers would conclude the proposal
would not have an unacceptable impact on highway safety.

5.3 Concerns relating to the excavation works on the structural stability of the neighbouring
property would be a civil rather than a planning matter.

5.4 With regards to the visual appearance of the proposal, Officers consider the proposal would
not give rise to unacceptable impacts on visual amenity of the locality or on the character and
setting of the AONB.

5.5 Accordingly, having regard to the detailing of the proposals, the potential impacts on the
locality, and the particular tests of the relevant policies, it is considered the information
submitted with the current application is sufficient to overcome the previous reason for refusal
and Officers therefore consider the proposal to be acceptable and the application is
recommended for grant.

RECOMMENDATION: GRANT- subject to the following conditions:-

1. The development to which this permission relates shall be begun no later than 12th
September 2023.
2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in strict accordance with details shown

on the following submitted plans and documents unless specified as otherwise within any
other condition pursuant to this permission:

(i) Site Location and Block Plans (Drawing No. L01) - Received 27 March 2018

(i) Survey Plan, Existing Front and Rear Elevation (Drawing No. S01) - Received 27 March
2018

(iii) Existing Side Elevation and Section Through Site (Drawing No. S02) - Received 27 March
2018

(iv) Proposed Front, Rear, Side Elevations & Section Through Driveway (Drawing No. P01) -
Received 27 March 2018

(v) Section A-A, B-B, Retaining Wall Detail (Drawing No. W01) - Received 27 March 2018
(vi) Existing Site Plan - Received 5 July 2018

(vii) Location Plan - Received 4 April 2018

The reasons for the conditions are:-

1. To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.
2. For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure a satisfactory standard of development.
NOTES TO APPLICANT:

DWR CYMRU WELSH WATER Note to Applicant:
Dwr Cymru Welsh Water have advised that some public sewers and lateral drains may not be
recorded on their maps of public sewers because they were originally privately owned and were

Page 66



transferred into public ownership by nature of the Water Industry (Schemes of Adoption of Private
Sewers) Regulations 2011. The presence of such assets may affect the proposal. In order to assist
Dwr Cymru Welsh Water in dealing with the proposal they request you contact their Operations
Contact Centre on 0800 085 3968 to establish the location and status of the sewer. Under the Water
Industry Act 1991 Dwr Cymru Welsh Water has rights of access to its apparatus at all times.

Page 67



This page is intentionally left blank



WARD :

WARD MEMBER(S):

APPLICATION NO:

PROPOSAL:

LOCATION:

Agenda Iltem 8

Prestatyn Central

Clir Hugh Irving
ClIr Tina Jones (c)

43/2018/0328/ PF
Construction of new surface level car park and associated works

1-5 Parc Dyffryn Industrial Estate Prestatyn LL19 9DG

Page 69



This page is intentionally left blank



A
E}\f\f as Ta%m

h Car Park <//

car Park y /% S
%@%s g

Mast (telecommunication)

CStation
Shelters

w!
o %
Pare Dyffryn
F’ustﬂ’
PBsts
3
=
e
5 55
&
iy
g
B =
3 S A
© Crown copyright and databas;a hts > 047_Ordnance S
43/2018/0328 sir ddinbych
Scale: 1:1250 denbighshire Q&

Printed on: 23/8/2018 at 14:47 PM Page 71 © Denbighshire County Council



ML Y HI DS
T hHOEAC &u(t‘"&.&(—ﬂjﬁh

iV i3 {0 R vinie

pHayg

I v MDA e 2 KT
nor)

ONINNYId snivis

- e na i aswE B E g
- AR Rty B

3doLs
7417

QV
N~
()
(@)
©
o



LAYOUT

- LOOMS/LLOBLIHOS

iy T Briea]
- SININNY Id
Pmsarkinun ssaity Bis ]
v ooz
it ey
e102208zZ -
o] g wenr)
1NOAVYT MHYD ¥vD 03S0d0Nd
m) Bupany

NALYL1S3IHd a1

HUVAHYD J4vLS
| iy
aan
) )
ubyseg w4 - Bujuueld uopepodsursg | |
a8 | uva ML 30 AR
SNOISIA3R

S3LON

TUOISOL
$5330V NvIu1S303d

CLHOIIH NI unpog
HIONN DNIdYISANYT
A3A3TMOT

€I91E00010 gy el 5102 'Peasatal) Sbnd Ay WOUAGOD UADID 5

A¥dS AINIGISIA
NViHLSI023d WE Aguwz

/

Qv TI08R
F18YHOCT ONILSIXT
A0 NOILYDQT3d
035040

FONVNILNIVW ALILN
HOA 31N0H 03A0YINI

AVIS ALITIBISIA
RYIH1SIA3dWZ AgwZ

DPana-72
] Mu\.l ' \J




Emer O'Connor

WARD : Prestatyn Central
WARD MEMBER(S): Clir Hugh Irving
Clir Tina Jones (c)
APPLICATION NO: 43/2018/0328/ PF
PROPOSAL: Construction of new surface level car park and associated works
LOCATION: 1-5 Parc Dyffryn Industrial Estate Prestatyn LL19 9DG
APPLICANT: Mr Dominic Bryan LIDL UK GMBH
CONSTRAINTS: Article 4 Direction
PUBLICITY Site Notice - Yes
UNDERTAKEN: Press Notice - No

Neighbour letters - Yes

REASON(S) APPLICATION REPORTED TO COMMITTEE:
Scheme of Delegation Part 2

e Recommendation to grant / approve — 4 or more objections received
¢ Recommendation to grant / approve — Town / Community Council objection

CONSULTATION RESPONSES:
PRESTATYN TOWN COUNCIL
“Objection
Number of objections had been received regarding traffic congestion which is compounded
further on market days.
Inadequate turning circle
Lack of pavement space which creates hazardous conditions for pedestrians”

DENBIGHSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL CONSULTEES —
Highways Officer
No objection.

RESPONSE TO PUBLICITY:
In objection
Representations received from:
Cristian Darlington, Morfa Unit B, Gasworks Lane, Prestatyn (O)Yvette Green, 4 The
Boulevard, Rhyl (O)M. Powell, Unit A Morfa Units, Gasworks Lane, Prestatyn (O)Lucinda
Wilson, Unit A, Morfa Units, Gasworks Lane, Prestatyn (O)lan Hapgood, 20 Bryntirion Drive
Prestatyn (O)Margaret Williams, 14 Moelwyn Avenue North, Kinmel Bay (C)

Summary of planning based representations in objection:

Highway safety concerns owing to more intensive use of an already congested access resulting
in danger to pedestrians and car users.

Existing parking problems exacerbated by proposal.

EXPIRY DATE OF APPLICATION: 02/07/2018

EXTENSION OF TIME AGREED: 14/09/2018

Page 74



REASONS FOR DELAY IN DECISION (where applicable):

. awaiting consideration by Committee

PLANNING ASSESSMENT:
1. THE PROPOSAL.:
1.1 Summary of proposals
1.1.1  The application proposes the construction of a staff car park to the rear of the new

Lidl store in Prestatyn.

1.1.2 Parking for 8 vehicles is proposed. The car park would be accessed off Gas Works
Lane.

1.1.3 The site is a level area bounded by fencing. Access is required to be maintained
across the front of the site for the adjacent utility works, hence the need for three
gateways in the vicinity of the access onto the road (see the plans at the front of the
report).

1.1.4 To facilitate the proposal, an existing bollard on the adjacent right of way is proposed
to be re-sited.

1.2 Description of site and surroundings
1.2.1 The site is located on the northern side of the Lidl store, which is currently under

construction.

1.2.2 Access to the store is from the south, off Penisa’r dre Road. Access to the proposed
parking area is off Gas Works Lane.

1.2.3 To the west of the site is the dwelling Gas Works House and opposite the site there
are some business units. The business units are bounded to the rear by the Prestatyn
Market site.

1.3 Relevant planning constraints/considerations
1.3.1  The site is within the development boundary for Prestatyn as shown on the Local
Development Plan proposals map.

1.4 Relevant planning history
1.4.1 The Lidl foodstore was granted permission in December 2016 and is currently under

construction.

1.5 Developments/changes since the original submission
1.5.1 Highways Officers requested clarification of details of the proposals, which resulted in
the submission of an additional plan to demonstrate access and parking
arrangements are workable.

1.6 Other relevant background information
1.6.1  The original planning application for the main store suggested that the majority of staff
would be able to park in the main 100 space car park. However, it was also
suggested that, given the proximity to the bus/railway station and town centre many
staff would walk or cycle to work.

2. DETAILS OF PLANNING HISTORY:
2.143/2016/0432 Demolition of existing buildings and erection of foodstore (Class A1), car
parking and service areas, vehicular and pedestrian accesses and associated works.
GRANTED under delegated powers/at Planning Committee 14/12/2016

3. RELEVANT POLICIES AND GUIDANCE:

Page 75



The main planning policies and guidance are considered to be:

3.1 Denbighshire Local Development Plan (adopted 4" June 2013)
Policy RD1 — Sustainable development and good standard design
Policy ASA1 — New transport infrastructure

Policy ASA3 — Parking standards

Supplementary Planning Guidance
Supplementary Planning Guidance Note: Parking Requirements In New Developments

3.2 Government Policy / Guidance
Planning Policy Wales (Edition 9) November 2016
Development Control Manual November 2016

3.3 Other material considerations
MAIN PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS:

In terms of general guidance on matters relevant to the consideration of a planning application,
Planning Policy Wales Edition 9, 2016 (PPW) confirms the requirement that planning applications
'should be determined in accordance with the approved or adopted development plan for the
area, unless material considerations indicate otherwise' (PPW section 3.1.3). PPW advises that
material considerations must be relevant to the regulation of the development and use of land in
the public interest, and fairly and reasonably relate to the development concerned (PPW section
3.1.4).

Development Management Manual 2016 states that material considerations can include the
number, size, layout, design and appearance of buildings, the means of access, landscaping,
service availability and the impact on the neighbourhood and on the environment (DMM section
9.4).

The following paragraphs in Section 4 of the report therefore refer to the policies of the
Denbighshire Local Development Plan, and to the material planning considerations which are
considered to be of relevance to the proposal.

4.1 The main land use planning issues in relation to the application are considered to be:

4.1.1 Principle
4.1.2 Residential amenity
4.1.3 Highways (including access and parking)

4.2 In relation to the main planning considerations:
4.21 Principle
The site is located within the Prestatyn development boundary, on a brownfield
development priority site.

The principle of the development of the wider site was established in the original
planning permission for the Lidl Store. The use of a small additional area of land for
ancillary parking to the store would not conflict with planning policy.

Officers consider the proposal is acceptable in principle. The detailed impacts are
considered below.

4.2.2 Residential amenity
Proposals should be considered in terms of their effect on the amenity and existing
use of land and buildings in the public interest, and as the Courts have ruled that the
individual interest is an aspect of the public interest, and it is therefore valid to
consider the effect of a proposal on the amenity of neighbouring properties. Test vi) of
Policy RD 1 requires that proposals do not unacceptably affect the amenity of local
residents and land users and provide satisfactory amenity standards itself.

Page 76



423

There are no representations raising concerns over the residential amenity impacts of
the proposals.

The nearest dwelling to the site is Gas House, which is located to the east of the car
parking area.

Whilst accepting that the development of the 8 space car parking area would have
some impact on the outlook from Gas House in particular, in the context of existing
development on the site, the adjacent land uses and the town centre location, it is not
considered this would be so overbearing to justify refusal of the application.

The proposal is therefore considered to comply with the policies and guidance listed
above.

Highways (including access and parking)

Local Development Plan Policy RD 1 tests (vii) and (viii) oblige provision of safe and
convenient access for a range of users, together with adequate parking, services and
manoeuvring space; and consideration of the impact of development on the local
highway network Policy ASA 3 requires adequate parking spaces for cars and
bicycles in connection with development proposals, and outlines considerations to be
given to factors relevant to the application of standards. These policies reflect general
principles set out in Planning Policy Wales (Section 8) and TAN 18 — Transport, in
support of sustainable development.

There are representations raising highway concerns, in terms of the acceptability of
the access, the adjacent road network, and the safety of neighbouring businesses
and pedestrians.

Highways Officers have considered the application and following a request for further
information, the developer has provided a plan detailing the vehicle movements into
and within the site. The car parking spaces have been reviewed to determine whether
they would interfere with the manoeuvring of vehicles. Highway Engineers have
concluded they won’t. The available area within the car park is also of sufficient size
to allow the vehicles to drive in forwards, reverse and leave the site in forward gear.
The plan also details improved visibility splays at the proposed site access. It is also
Officers’ understanding that Lidl are currently in the process of acquiring a formal
grant of easement as to a right of way from a third party to access from Gas Works
Lane. It is therefore considered the splayed access, low level usage of the
site/carriageway and parking of vehicles within the site would be acceptable to serve
the development subject to the imposition of planning conditions.

Whilst it is accepted that there may be issues with parking in the area at present,
Officers do not consider this is a reasonable ground to warrant refusal of this
proposal, as it seeks to provide an off road parking area for staff away from the main
store. The scale of the development seems unlikely to encourage significantly more
traffic within the area as it will only serve 8 cars. Having regard to the Highway
Officer’s stance on the safety of the access and the existing position it is not
considered that there are reasonable grounds to refuse the application on the basis of
highway safety. It is considered to comply with the relevant highways policies.

Other matters

Well — being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015

The Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 imposes a duty on the
Council not only to carry out sustainable development, but also to take reasonable
steps in exercising its functions to meet its sustainable development (or well-being)
objectives. The Act sets a requirement to demonstrate in relation to each application
determined, how the development complies with the Act.

Page 77



The report on this application has been drafted with regard to the Council’s duty and
the “sustainable development principle”, as set out in the 2015 Act. The
recommendation takes account of the requirement to ensure that present needs are
met without compromising the ability of future generations to meet their own needs. It
is therefore considered that there would be no significant or unacceptable impact
upon the achievement of well-being objectives as a result of the proposed
recommendation.

5. SUMMARY AND CONCLUSIONS:

5.1 It is the opinion of Officers that the proposal is acceptable and the application is

recommended for grant.

RECOMMENDATION: GRANT- subject to the following conditions:-

The development to which this permission relates shall be begun no later than 12th
September 2023

The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with details shown on
the following submitted plans and documents unless specified as otherwise within any other
condition pursuant to this permission:

(i) Site Boundary (Drawing No. SCP/18077/D01) - Received 8 May 2018

(ii) Proposed Car Park Layout (Drawing No. SCP/18077/SK001) - Received 4 April 2018

(iii) Photograph - Received 8 May 2018

(iv) Existing Site Plan (Drawing No. AD101) - Received 4 April 2018

(v) Proposed Landscape Design and Specification (Drawing No. AD 116 REV C) - Received 8
May 2018

Facilities shall be provided and retained within the site for the parking and turning of vehicles
in accordance with the approved plan, and which shall be completed prior to the proposed
development being brought into use.

Prior to the commencement of the use hereby permitted further details of the proposed
vehicular access/egress to the site along with confirmation of any easements shall be
submitted to and agreed by the Local Planning Authority. Only those details subsequently
approved shall be implemented thereafter.

The use of the car parking area hereby permitted shall be for staff of the adjacent food retail
store only unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

The reasons for the conditions are:-

1. To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

2. To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

3 To provide for the parking of vehicles clear of the highway and to ensure that reversing by
vehicles into or from the highway is rendered unnecessary in the interest of traffic safety.

4, To ensure a safe access and egress is created to the site.

5. To ensure adequate parking clear of the highway in the interests of the free flow of traffic.

NOTES TO APPLICANT:

Your attention is drawn to the attached Highway Supplementary Notes Nos. 1, 3, 4, 5 & 10.
Your attention is drawn to the attached Part N form (New Road and Street Works Act 1991).

Page 78



WARD :

WARD MEMBER(S):

APPLICATION NO:

PROPOSAL.:

LOCATION:

APPLICANT:

Agenda Item 9

Prestatyn North

Clir Rachel Flynn

ClIr Tony Flynn

ClIr Paul Penlington

43/2018/0439/PF

Demolition of existing garage and change of use of domestic
curtilage to accommodate a static caravan for use as a holiday
let

45 Beach Road West Prestatyn LL19 7LL

Mr & Mrs Bradbury

Page 79



This page is intentionally left blank



I
5\!:@{'&
joulders
..-""F‘r.‘
E!Bi-- o
ﬁﬁ"”“w@
B Car Park
— 10“'@“
< \
-

%
\
i
)
© Crown copyright and database n'gh{s',{OW Ordnance Suney 100023408.
43/2018/0439 sir ddinbych @
Scale: 1:1250 denbighshire @

Printed on: 21/8/2018 at 15:34 PM Page 81 © Denbighshire County Council



I
&[e05 | | 1T 3ded £y o pajnxd uaaq sey 1394y Butmep aty c% WALDOE DINMSEIW M DIEIS SEY )
r g : = —
Woof— i [ _

g

TIL 6171 ‘ulizsald
1S5M PeOY LEeq b

1NOAVT @3SOdOHd

qow o)
b 50 paunias 1
0] sjps kopunoqg Guysizs

waomy = sbuoxy

o0 passed = wan

R

apgoaunad ied puo butiod = smnbny

|
Ei_rs

£33330 busiey

Guisua) of uoneas|g

===

Eusia 50 pausiar
N aEelkeee lowiis ol

apyuow pasedory
263y 3 yhy 0021 =m0

¥ ol sbonb buyt)
/!

Joon

buymry
i

0 pastar |

a0y .\

yiod ssany P
’
/
payspwy

S¥

§59200 busiry

gy w) Guypod bugsmy

pawojar
Butjonrd bujsz)

uoizs 50
s Bujney

llll.l
——
—_—
—_—
—_—

anuaay Py

Page 82

153, peoy yoeag



183% | | tv Jaded gy UC P LX) SeY 12ays BUIMEID OUl UayM Lt 3:. % B(eIs sy
T
Wwwpo| WILQG __— wwp'

_ sighdmid pkainy g 4 8 S ¥
ll..l:llr!ui!ltilnllu.!

SEEHLOLYLLO V|
WG GIT) WGOSa Jomen Tl M
Ay RN

I‘r|.|.|.|.|.|.|.|.l.|.|.|.|.I.r|| o
Aopurnq ool ybiy w,

20206
buudpo jo pg

Py

buysiny
0

IE

doygyiom ¢ abesed
Bunsixy

pon ARy
by

e _I||||||||||||U.| yhy wg puo gopt WHLMOG
Sy — wWIaRq o) doj Lo spusd
L) #Rii :«i......nhﬂo_n.
pasn} Jums xauddo e R S b
0021 wos Aopunaq bunsiny =
$$3300 bujmny !

anuaay Py

—
_——
T e

Has uow
0] UG 33d
Bty

—l

s53120 Guysuy

S 1m0} Suryod bujsiny

—
—
—
——

— ~ Pagesd3 T T T T == S e s

1sap peoy yoeag



sdaars  wiooupa ¢ OF X gE

CARAIAN DETAIL

swes aya3j

BA B8] Se IZ1S

5 ITIM YoTym aseq

02 B UC PIITEIBGI{TIM IT pue wg

°q TITm uea

pasodoia se
ueA 273R2S

0TH. 8¢

.;ufm IUBTIY [IRI=A0

3
>

ge 84

@®
Bufhts
eaeIed TeOTIdA]



Emer O'Connor
WARD : Prestatyn North

WARD MEMBER(S): Clir Rachel Flynn
Clir Tony Flynn
ClIr Paul Penlington

APPLICATION NO: 43/2018/0439/ PF
PROPOSAL: Demolition of existing garage and change of use of domestic

curtilage to accommodate a static caravan for use as a holiday
let

LOCATION: 45 Beach Road West Prestatyn LL19 7LL
APPLICANT: Mr & Mrs Bradbury

CONSTRAINTS: C1 Flood Zone

PUBLICITY Site Notice - No

UNDERTAKEN: Press Notice - No

Neighbour letters - Yes

REASON(S) APPLICATION REPORTED TO COMMITTEE:
Scheme of Delegation Part 2

e Member request for referral to Committee

CONSULTATION RESPONSES:
PRESTATYN TOWN COUNCIL
“No objection”

NATURAL RESOURCES WALES

Objects to the proposed development as submitted and consider that the Flood Consequence
Assessment (FCA) submitted is insufficient as it has failed to demonstrate that the
consequences of flooding can be acceptably managed over the development lifetime.

DWR CYMRU / WELSH WATER
No objection.

DENBIGHSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL CONSULTEES -
Highways Officer
No objection

RESPONSE TO PUBLICITY: None

EXPIRY DATE OF APPLICATION: 14/9/2018

REASONS FOR DELAY IN DECISION:
. awaiting consideration by Committee
PLANNING ASSESSMENT:

1. THE PROPOSAL:
1.1 Summary of proposals

Page 85



2,

3.

The application proposes the demolition of an existing garage and change of use of
part of the domestic curtilage to accommodate a static caravan for use as a holiday
let at 45 Beach Road West in Prestatyn.

The caravan is proposed to be sited to the rear (south) of the existing dwelling. The
newly created plot on which the caravan is shown to be sited is rectangular in shape
and measures some 87sg.m in total. The caravan would be sited centrally on this plot,
with a small parking area for 1 car indicated to the front of the caravan. Access to the
site is off Third Avenue which abuts the east of the site.

lllustrative plans have been provided of a two bed static caravan. It would be sited on
a concrete base measuring 8.5 metres by 3.050 metres. The caravan would be
connected to the existing mains drainage and services serving the main dwelling.

1.2 Description of site and surroundings

1.2.1

1.2.2

1.2.3

1.24

The existing dwelling is located on Beach Road West on the northern periphery of
Prestatyn. To the side of the site is Third Avenue. The newly created plot shown to
house the caravan would be accessed from Third Avenue via an existing gated
access.

The land on which the caravan is proposed to be sited currently forms part of the rear
curtilage of 45 Beach Road West. There is currently a shallow pitched roof garage on
the application site. The site is bounded by a pre-cast stone effect concrete wall
topped with timber panels.

Beach Road West comprises of a mix of dwellings which face northwards to the sea.
No 45 and the neighbouring dwelling to the east are similar style dwellings with some
historic interest although both have been subject to alteration. There is also a mix of

dwelling styles on Third Avenue.

To the west of the site and further south of Beach Road West is Lido Beach Caravan
Site, a long-established static site.

1.3 Relevant planning constraints/considerations

1.3.1 The site is located within the development boundary of Prestatyn as defined within the
Local Development Plan.
1.3.2 The site is located within a Zone C1 flood risk area as defined by the Development

Advice Maps of TAN 15: Development and Flood Risk.

1.4 Relevant planning history

1.4.1

None.

1.5 Developments/changes since the original submission

1.5.1

None.

1.6 Other relevant background information

1.6.1

None.

DETAILS OF PLANNING HISTORY:
2.1 None

RELEVANT POLICIES AND GUIDANCE:

The main planning policies and guidance are considered to be:

3.1 Denbighshire Local Development Plan (adopted 4" June 2013)
Policy RD1 — Sustainable development and good standard design

Page 86



Policy PSE12 — Chalet, static and touring caravan and camping sites
Policy VOE5 — Conservation of natural resources

Policy ASA2 — Provision of sustainable transport facilities

Policy ASA3 — Parking standards

Supplementary Planning Guidance
Supplementary Planning Guidance Note: Caravans, Chalets & Camping

3.2 Government Policy / Guidance
Planning Policy Wales (Edition 9) November 2016
Development Control Manual November 2016
Technical Advice Note No. 15 Development and Flood Risk

3.3 Other material considerations
MAIN PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS:

In terms of general guidance on matters relevant to the consideration of a planning application,
Planning Policy Wales Edition 9, 2016 (PPW) confirms the requirement that planning applications
'should be determined in accordance with the approved or adopted development plan for the
area, unless material considerations indicate otherwise' (PPW section 3.1.3). PPW advises that
material considerations must be relevant to the regulation of the development and use of land in
the public interest, and fairly and reasonably relate to the development concerned (PPW section
3.1.4).

Development Management Manual 2016 states that material considerations can include the
number, size, layout, design and appearance of buildings, the means of access, landscaping,
service availability and the impact on the neighbourhood and on the environment (DMM section
9.4).

The following paragraphs in Section 4 of the report therefore refer to the policies of the
Denbighshire Local Development Plan, and to the material planning considerations which are
considered to be of relevance to the proposal.

4.1 The main land use planning issues in relation to the application are considered to be:

Principle
Visual amenity
Residential amenity

Drainage (including flooding)
Highways (including access and parking)

Rl ol il o
— o — )
O W

4.2 In relation to the main planning considerations:
4.2.1 Principle
Local Development Plan Policy RD1 states that development proposals within
development boundaries will be supported subject to compliance with detailed criteria
and other relevant policies.

Local Development Plan Policy PSE12 states that proposals for new static caravan
sites will not be permitted. The policy justification states that whilst static sites are an
important source of holiday accommodation, such sites are often seen as being
visually intrusive, and there is specific reference to this being the case in the main
resort areas such as Prestatyn. It goes on to note that there is already an over
provision of caravan type development particularly in the North of the County, much of
which is of low quality and there is reference to much of the coastal area being
exposed with little tree cover which makes the assimilation of caravan sites into the
landscape difficult.

The proposal is, in effect, to create a static holiday site, albeit for 1 caravan. In this

case, the proposed involves hiving off part of the private garden area of an existing
residential dwelling.

Page 87



422

423

The site is located within the development boundary of Prestatyn. Whilst there is a
presumption in favour of development within the development boundary, there is
specific policy within the adopted LDP for Static Caravan Sites which has to be
applied to this proposal, albeit that it is only for one caravan. This policy states that
new static caravan sites should not be permitted.

Taking the relevant planning polices into consideration, it is the opinion of Officers
that the principle of the proposal is not acceptable. Officers are of the view that should
this application be granted this could set an unwanted precedent for use of other
garden areas of residential dwellings being sub-divided to allow for the siting of static
caravans. Static caravan provision, as set out in the policy, is already well catered for
elsewhere. The detailed impacts of the proposal are considered further below.

Visual amenity
Local Development Plan Policy RD 1 test (i) requires due regard to issues of siting,

layout, form, character, design, materials, aspect, microclimate and intensity of use of
land / buildings and spaces between buildings, which are matters relevant to the
visual impact of development; test (vi) requires that development does not
unacceptably affect prominent public views into, out of, or across any settlement or
area of open countryside; test (vi) requires the incorporation of existing landscape or
other features, takes account of site contours, and changes in levels and prominent
skylines; and test (xiii) requires the incorporation of suitable landscaping measures to
protect and enhance development in its local context.

There are no representations raising visual amenity concerns.

The application proposes the change of use of part of the rear curtilage of a dwelling
and the siting of a static caravan. This is a mainly residential area between the sea
and Lido Beach Caravan Site. On Beach Road West there is a mix of dwelling types
and sizes. The static caravan would front Third Avenue, a cul de sac of 2 storey
dwellings and would be viewed between the host dwelling no. 45 Beach Road West
and no. 2 Third Avenue.

Whilst there are static caravans in the vicinity of the site (located at Lido Beach
Caravan Park), it the opinion of Officers that the subdivision of the curtilage of no. 45
and the use of land for the siting of an independent static caravan would appear at
odds with the residential character of the immediate area. The caravan would not be
viewed ancillary to the dwelling owing to the separate access, subdivision of the
curtilage and proposed nature of the use. The caravan would appear a prominent and
cramped visual feature within the cul de sac of Third Avenue and in Officers’ opinion
would have a negative impact on the character of the area, contrary to Policy RD 1.

Residential amenity

Local Development Plan Policy RD 1 test (i) requires due regard to issues of siting,
layout, form, character, design, materials, aspect, microclimate and intensity of use of
land / buildings and spaces between buildings, which touch on the potential for impact
on residential amenity; test (vi) sets the requirement to assess the impact of
development on the amenities of local residents, other land and property users, or
characteristics of the locality, in terms of increased activity, disturbance, noise, dust,
fumes, litter, drainage, light pollution, etc.

There are no representations raising visual amenity concerns.

To facilitate the development, the garden area of no. 45 Beach Road West would be
reduced to 7.5 metres in depth at the closet point to the newly created boundary.
There would be over 100sq metres of amenity space remaining for the dwelling
should the subdivision of the garden be permitted. The caravan would be within 1.5
metres of the boundary with the adjacent dwelling to the south, although this part of
the boundary is abutted by a garage wall at No.2 Third Avenue.

Page 88



424

Considering the siting, spacing and window arrangements it is considered that the
proposal would not harm the residential amenity of the adjacent occupiers and there
would be no conflict with Policy RD 1.

Drainage (including flooding)

Local Development Plan Policy RD 1 test (xi) requires that development satisfies
physical or natural environmental considerations relating to drainage and liability to
flooding.

Planning Policy Wales 3.1.4 confirms that factors to be taken into account in making
planning decisions (material considerations) must be planning matters; that is, they
must be relevant to the regulation of the development and use of land in the public
interest, towards the goal of sustainability. The drainage / flooding impacts of a
development proposal are a material consideration.

Planning Policy Wales Section 13.2 and 13.4 identifies flood risk as a material
consideration in planning and along with TAN 15 — Development and Flood Risk,
providing a detailed framework within which risks arising from different sources of
flooding should be assessed.

The site lies entirely within Zone C1 as defined by Welsh Government’'s Development
Advice Map (DAM) as referred to under TAN15: Development & Flood Risk. C1 zones
are areas of the floodplain which are developed and served by significant
infrastructure, including flood defences. In C1 zones development can take place
subject to application of the justification tests, including acceptability of
consequences.

Section 6 of TAN 15 sets out specific planning considerations to be given to new
development in C1 flood zones and states that this should only be permitted if it is
determined by the Local Planning Authority to be justified in that location. The
relevant section (6.2) states that development can only be justified if it can be
demonstrated that:

i) Its location in zone C is necessary to assist, or be part of, a local authority
regeneration initiative or a local authority strategy required to sustain an existing
settlement; or,

ii) Its location in zone C is necessary to contribute to key employment objectives
supported by the local authority, and other key partners, to sustain an existing
settlement or region;

and

iii) It concurs with the aims of PPW and meets the definition of previously developed
land (PPW fig 2.1); and,

iv) The potential consequences of a flooding event for the particular type of
development have been considered, and in terms of the criteria contained in sections
5 and 7 and appendix 1 found to be acceptable.

In relation to the justification tests, the site is located within the development boundary
of Prestatyn. However, as mentioned above there is a policy conflict with the principle
of the development as the LDP seeks to resist new static caravan development.
Hence it is considered that the proposed development would not be justified in
relation to the tests of section 6.2 of TAN 15.

In relation to potential consequences of a flooding, a limited Flood Consequences
Assessment (FCA) has been submitted with the application. The FCA acknowledges
that the site is at flood risk and has presented a number of measures that would be
implemented in the development to reduce risks. This includes anchoring the caravan
to a concrete base, and ensuring that residents sign up to Natural Resources Wales’
(NRW) free Flood Warning service available for this community.

NRW has been consulted on the application as the statutory consultee on flood risk
matters. They have significant concerns that the development and its users will
introduce new highly vulnerable development to an area of flood risk. They have
advised that the site is located close to the Coastal Frontage of Prestatyn, and

Page 89



although the area benefits from flood defence infrastructure, the flood risks to this
community are likely to increase considerably over the next 100 years with the
continuation of sea level rise and climate change. Outputs from Denbighshire’s
updated Strategic Flood Consequences Assessment shows that when the effects of
climate change and failure of flood risk assets are considered over the next 100
years, the site could be affected by very significant flooding depths which would pose
a significant flood hazard to the development and users of it.

Considering the severity of the flood risks in this location over the development
lifetime, NRW do not consider that mitigation measures could be realistically included
in this development to manage the flood risks to an acceptable level. NRW have
objected to the application and consider it unlikely that any FCA would be able to
demonstrate that new highly vulnerable development on this site can satisfy the
requirements of TAN15.

Therefore it is considered that the application fails to comply with the relevant tests of
TAN 15 and planning policy tests in relation to flood risk.

4.2.5 Highways (including access and parking)
Local Development Plan Policy RD 1 tests (vii) and (viii) oblige provision of safe and
convenient access for a range of users, together with adequate parking, services and
manoeuvring space; and consideration of the impact of development on the local
highway network. Policy ASA 3 requires adequate parking spaces for cars and
bicycles in connection with development proposals, and outlines considerations to be
given to factors relevant to the application of standards. These policies reflect
general principles set out in Planning Policy Wales (Section 8).

There are no representations raising highway related concerns.

The proposed plans show an access off Third Avenue for the static caravan. An area
is shown in front of the caravan which could be utilised for parking.

Highways Officers have not objected to the proposal, therefore Officers would
consider the proposal would not give rise to unacceptable adverse impacts on
highway safety.

Other matters

Well — being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015

The Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 imposes a duty on the
Council not only to carry out sustainable development, but also to take reasonable
steps in exercising its functions to meet its sustainable development (or well-being)
objectives. The Act sets a requirement to demonstrate in relation to each application
determined, how the development complies with the Act.

The report on this application has been drafted with regard to the Council’s duty and
the “sustainable development principle”, as set out in the 2015 Act. The
recommendation takes account of the requirement to ensure that present needs are
met without compromising the ability of future generations to meet their own needs. It
is therefore considered that there would be no significant or unacceptable impact
upon the achievement of well-being objectives as a result of the proposed
recommendation.

RECOMMENDATION: REFUSE- for the following reasons:-

Page 90



The reasons for the conditions are:-

1.

It is the opinion of the Local Planning Authority that the proposal to change the use of part of
the residential curtilage of 45 Beach Road West to accommodate a static caravan for holiday
purposes is unacceptable in principle as it would be contrary to the provisions of Policy PSE

12 of the Local Development Plan.

It is the opinion of the Local Planning Authority that the proposal to change the use of part of
the residential curtilage of 45 Beach Road West to accommodate a static caravan for holiday
purposes would be out of keeping with and have a detrimental impact on the visual amenity of
the residential area immediately surrounding the site, also setting an unwelcome precedent
for similar developments which the Council would find difficult to resist. The proposal fails to
comply with criteria i) of Policy RD1 in the Local Development Plan.

It is the opinion of the Local Planning Authority that a proposal for a static caravan for holiday
purposes is not justified development in relation to the requirements of paragraph 6.2 of TAN
15, and the consequences of flooding are not acceptable when assessed against the
guidance contained within TAN 15, Development and Flood Risk. Therefore the proposal fails
to comply with the tests and acceptability criteria of TAN 15, and is contrary to criteria xi) of
Policy RD 1 in the Local Development Plan, and to principles and advice contained within
Planning Policy Wales (Edition 9, 2016).

Page 91



This page is intentionally left blank



WARD :

WARD MEMBER(S):

APPLICATION NO:

PROPOSAL:

LOCATION:

Agenda Item 10

Prestatyn South West

ClIr Gareth Davies
Clir Bob Murray (c)

43/2018/0522/ PS

Tynnu amod rhif 3 o rif cod caniatéd cynllunio 43/2018/0030 /
Removal of condition no. 3 of planning permission code no.
43/2018/0030 (‘The site shall only be used for caravans on tour
and no caravan shall stay on the site for any period longer than
21 days")

Four Winds Farm Caravan Site Ffordd Ffynnon Prestatyn LL19
8BE

Page 93



This page is intentionally left blank



© Crown copyright and database rights 2017 Ordrwmx\u\f‘\\ey 100023408.

43/2018/0522
Scale: 1:2500
Printed on: 21/8/2018 at 10:11 AM Page 95

50 m
100 ft

sir dginb%h 7.1
© Denbighshire County Council



Wl W

| et it

]
2

pite )

Produced 15 Dec 2017 {ram the Ordnance Survey MasleiMap
{Topography) Catabase and incotporat ng survayed revision
avaldable a1 tis date

The ceprasaniation of a road, track or path s na evidance of a right
ol way The representat on ol features as ncs /s no evidence of 3
piopeity boundary

Versian 1.0 Unvers aned d reclory POF

EXTENT OF SITE

Melres N

V] 10 20 30 43 L1

= —— s— “L.
11256

Supplied by Blue Fox

Lconce < Crown Copyrighl and
dalabase nighls 2017 05 100038864
Relerence 11157669

Centre coorcinales 104353 380555

Page 96

E LY

T

Ll

Four Winds Farm, Flondd Fiynnon,
Prestatyn
LLI19 8BE



SITE LAYOUT

43(/2018 /0030

FINULR (UREYTY CHYSIXT

" BHESIXD W
SGUIII TIT  Ehig 43 Bang s

CULsY $o

4415 ENRGND Tyisie) fojicy
SE U] THOSIN] @tinesy
PR T PIHSHIY ) WIS ST G = RS
O PARpICt YT S0 SOPIGA
ap
& - buipynayno
T \ | - ——
R T { !
N u__ ot Lal B, K SPHA 61IG) - :
L a7 == =7 ﬁﬂ\\\dmn\.\.* sop, ooy ity P T e
. s gy oY SEMHRI TS <H bl | [
) #40d uBADLOY Buiing Lal2iog
booga
L= oy bumamp
& \\\,, ST g
U
o
. o} NI 10
L B \ B — _ LN PIog P50y
wl A wﬁ.\\\aw\»\» Y pué >
T N | A ™ > . o
\ A 1 Al | !
= et VL) . . <
pmiiv T R T BT Ty : ¢
CRUPTI EGSID ! S =t : ; o
LT 2
: )
gy
ORI BALSIKD
N
GBI CUICIONG) KTTVDS GUydit)g 45U UL v F2Is pup
SRS 10 SISO T4 4oy Ty ¥ W0 PIDY 09 0f PR J0M) 1N PRSP Syhoy
GHGP JO YIS G0 MM TIHIMGIG0] TUOWTHNOW JES 1040 {NTNS 29 @) G0 1y
"SI YOIOUPRED 1% TN
JOFUDNTUTIN GHIGY) VOSDTS GHYION JSHY g Wi IPRGPHN D 4 GIngitlg fiy
HIUB GOV TOWIG G R 0 PIOIOM 5§ Sl s 5
THE. e
SPIOYIG J1QND) It PTYY pUn SINUIS VM PRUICKIS TG 0) SPI § SHADLY iy O L  WESXNT iy Sikny D
YSU W9 Y STIRSS 9 U0GD 5D LI EL wSSIMp Saipd < 5 S LTE b Yol 3
GOy TG o ST G WOGD SY LY 401y PEjTaHy 101 ¢ o} TP RY %E& AL A

WMGTE, G0 JT0Q a3 PNGUNS 0f 455404

/N PIXI 0TS [TV BRIRIG METY BIMOOG) M WHG s TN 6'g 1Tl
WMGTZ BY 500 §004 Fmoins g

ACIHKO) | I EDXINK Wi JMDIJ 11040 IMCOE ST PRADEETIS T W STINTT MmOo]
U PEE SEMIIVS Jpay woag 4O GUUHYIS (NUDEPDY 0N FHITH 4H TH

BLN4DTSPNDT PRraqQly

VEI MG | "JN 2 " SIiod I ModhierunpmA 153
MBI W5 =N " SN0 Jij0gy TUITIA i3
HENF W) = D PHUS FlJaNS JLIBM B me

TR

[ 0350d0ud
_ 0sZ1 790

_ WYY SONIv 5N0d




Emer O'Connor

WARD : Prestatyn South West
WARD MEMBER(S): ClIr Gareth Davies
Clir Bob Murray (c)
APPLICATION NO: 43/2018/0522/ PS
PROPOSAL: Removal of condition no. 3 of planning permission code no.

43/2018/0030 ('The site shall only be used for caravans on tour
and no caravan shall stay on the site for any period longer than

21 days")

LOCATION: Four Winds Farm Caravan Site Ffordd Ffynnon Prestatyn LL19
8BE

APPLICANT: Mr Alan Clews

CONSTRAINTS: None

PUBLICITY Site Notice - No

UNDERTAKEN: Press Notice - No

Neighbour letters - Yes

REASON(S) APPLICATION REPORTED TO COMMITTEE:
Scheme of Delegation Part 2
¢ Recommendation to grant — Community Council objection.

CONSULTATION RESPONSES:
PRESTATYN TOWN COUNCIL—-
“Objection. Removal of this condition will set a precedent resulting in other caravan parks with
this condition imposed to apply for removal”

DENBIGHSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL CONSULTEES -
Public Protection Environmental Health Officer —
Awaiting response.

RESPONSE TO PUBLICITY: None received.
EXPIRY DATE OF APPLICATION: 25/07/2018
EXTENSION OF TIME AGREED? 14/09/2018

REASONS FOR DELAY IN DECISION (where applicable):
e Delayed owing to consideration at Committee.

PLANNING ASSESSMENT:
1. THE PROPOSAL.:
1.1 Summary of proposals
1.1.1  The application seeks to remove a condition which was attached to planning consent
reference 43/2018/0030, granted on 18th April 2018 for “Alterations to existing touring
caravan park area for the siting of 12 touring caravan pitches in lieu of existing
provision for 5 pitches”. The site is at Four Winds Farm in Prestatyn.

1.1.2 Condition 3 of the permission relates to the touring caravan element of the
development and reads as follows:

Page 98



“The site shall only be used for caravans on tour and no caravan shall stay on the site
for any period longer than 21 days.

The reason for the Condition was —
“To ensure that no unauthorised permanent residential occupation of holiday units
takes place on site.”

1.1.3 The application is accompanied by a Statement which puts forward the case for the
removal of the condition. It is contended that as the site is a seasonal caravan site
with a condition restricting use during the winter period, 315t March until 15t April, that
the holiday units could not become permanent residential units. It is argued that the
removal of the condition would result in less traffic on the adjacent road, as caravans
would be towed onto the site and left for longer periods than the specified 21 days.

1.2 Description of site and surroundings

1.2.1  Four Winds Farm is located off Ffordd Ffynnon to the west of Prestatyn. The site is
accessed off a lane which also serves Pydew Farm and the Abandoned Animals
Association Rescue Centre.

1.2.2 The building complex at Four Winds comprises of a bungalow which has recently
been granted permission to be extended, and a small range of single storey
outbuildings.

1.2.3 The character of the area is open flat agricultural land along the coastal plain between
Prestatyn and Rhyl to the west.

1.3 Relevant planning constraints/considerations

1.3.1 The site is outside of any development boundary in an area without any specific
designation in the Local Development Plan.

1.4 Relevant planning history

1.4.1 The site has been in use in the past for the stationing of caravans under Caravan
Club exemptions.

1.4.2 The permission of relevance to the application was granted at Committee in April
2018, for a touring caravan site as detailed in section 2 of the report. A total of twelve
pitches were proposed in the application utilising the existing sanitary facilities and
access. The permission contained a number of other conditions including ones
requiring the keeping of a register of caravans visiting the site with names and
addresses of occupiers, the dates of arrival and departure; and a requirement that no
caravans shall remain on the site between 315t October in any one year and 15t April
in the following year.

1.5 Developments/changes since the original submission

1.5.1 None.

1.6 Other relevant background information

1.6.1 None.

2. DETAILS OF PLANNING HISTORY:

Page 99



2.143/2018/0030/ PF Alterations to existing touring caravan park area for the siting of 12 touring
caravan pitches in lieu of existing provision for 5 pitches. Granted by Planning Committee
18/04/2018.

RELEVANT POLICIES AND GUIDANCE:

The main planning policies and guidance are considered to be:
Denbighshire Local Development Plan (adopted 4™ June 2013)
Policy RD1 — Sustainable development and good standard design
Policy PSE5 — Rural economy

Policy PSE12 — Chalet, static and touring caravan and camping sites

3.1 Government Policy / Guidance
Planning Policy Wales (Edition 9) November 2016
Development Control Manual November 2016
Technical Advice Notes

MAIN PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS:

In terms of general guidance on matters relevant to the consideration of a planning application,
Planning Policy Wales Edition 9, 2016 (PPW) confirms the requirement that planning applications
'should be determined in accordance with the approved or adopted development plan for the
area, unless material considerations indicate otherwise' (PPW section 3.1.3). PPW advises that
material considerations must be relevant to the regulation of the development and use of land in
the public interest, and fairly and reasonably relate to the development concerned (PPW section
3.1.4).

Development Management Manual 2016 states that material considerations can include the
number, size, layout, design and appearance of buildings, the means of access, landscaping,
service availability and the impact on the neighbourhood and on the environment (DMM section
9.4).

The following paragraphs in Section 4 of the report therefore refer to the policies of the
Denbighshire Local Development Plan, and to the material planning considerations which are
considered to be of relevance to the proposal.

3.2 The main land use planning issues in relation to the application are considered to be:

3.2.1  Principle

3.2.2 Visual amenity
3.2.3 Highways (including access and parking)

3.2.4 Controls over year round caravan use
3.2.5 Other matters

3.3 In relation to the main planning considerations:

3.3.1 Principle
There are no Local Development Plan Policies of specific relevance to applications

which seek to alter the extent of occupation of existing touring caravans. There is
general reference in policy PSE 12 which covers Chalet, Static and touring caravan
and camping sites to occupancy restrictions and ensuring holiday uses on new or
improved sites.

Policy PSE 5 Rural Economy recognises the importance of the tourist industry to the
local economy subject to tests of detailed impacts. Planning Policy Wales offers
similar ‘in principle’ encouragement for suitable tourist developments, subject to
appropriate environmental safeguards.

Page 100



3.3.2

3.3.3

3.34

This site was formerly a small scale caravan club site. The planning permission
granted in April 2018 recognised the Council’s acceptance that the site was suitable
for the touring caravan use having regard to planning policy, following assessment of
detailed impacts such as landscape, amenity, highway, ecology and drainage.

Officers consider therefore that the key issues to address here are whether there
would be any ‘additional’ localised impacts from the potential use of the site by touring
caravans for periods longer than 21 days, and whether there are adequate controls to
ensure the use is for holiday purposes and would not in effect allow potential to create
a residential site. The latter is an issue Members have recognised as significant
when considering similar applications in the County, and is referred to in the following
sections of the report.

Visual amenity
In referring to what may be regarded as material considerations, Planning Policy

Wales 3.1.4 refers to the number, size, layout, design and appearance of
development, the means of access, landscaping, service availability and the impact
on the neighbourhood and on the environment. The impact of a development on
visual amenity is therefore a relevant test on planning applications. This is
emphasised in Paragraph 3.1.7, which states that proposals should be considered in
terms of their effect on the amenity and existing use of land and buildings in the public
interest.

The April 2018 permission permits the siting of caravans on Four Winds from April to
the end of October each year. The application seeks to remove the condition
restricting individual caravans staying more than 21 days at a time within this season.

The effect of the removal of this condition is unlikely to impact on visual amenity, as
there is permission to site 12 touring caravans on the site for the whole season (April
to October). Whether caravans move on or off the site is immaterial, as long as the
total number is not exceeded and the caravans are moved off out of the permitted
season. It is considered that the proposal meets the visual impact tests of PSE 12.

Highways (including access and parking)
Planning Policy Wales 3.1.4 refers to what may be regarded as material
considerations and that these can include the highway implications of a proposal.

The access arrangements to the site are to remain as existing. The Agent contends
the application may result in less vehicle movement which would address concerns of
Members raised at Planning Committee when the decision was made in April.
Highways Officers have raised no objection to the removal of the condition.

Given the access arrangements and the scale of the proposal it is considered that the
removal of condition 3 would not give rise to any significant issues in respect of
access to the highway or on-site parking, having regard to the previous approval for
these arrangements.

Controls over holiday use

The application does not propose any variation to Condition 4 and 5 of the 2018
permission which governs the occupation and seasonal use of the touring caravans
on the site irrespective of the determination on the application to allow unrestricted
period of sitting of the touring caravans. These conditions are worded as follows:

4. An up to date register shall be kept of all caravans visiting the site, containing the
registration number of each caravan, the names of all the occupiers, their main home
addresses, and the date of their arrival and departure from the site . The register shall
be made available for inspection on request by the Local Planning Authority.

Page 101



5. No caravans shall remain on site between the 31st October in any one year and
the 18t April in the following year.

Officers suggest the comfort offered by Condition 4 and 5 are adequate to address
the concerns of the Town Council over the use of caravans, including a mechanism
for investigating any suspected breaches, where complaints may be made or there
may be concerns over uses. In reality the 21 day restriction would be more difficult to
enforce from an officer perspective than the other conditions imposed which seek to
prevent permanent residential use. Challenging condition no. 4, which requires the
site operator to keep records, will, in officer’s view, offer a more practical means to
control the use of the site. Such investigations of the remaining conditions would be
undertaken by the Development Management and / or Public Protection Sections as
appropriate.

Other matters

Well — being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015

The Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 imposes a duty on the
Council not only to carry out sustainable development, but also to take reasonable
steps in exercising its functions to meet its sustainable development (or well-being)
objectives. The Act sets a requirement to demonstrate in relation to each application
determined, how the development complies with the Act.

The report on this application has been drafted with regard to the Council’s duty and
the “sustainable development principle”, as set out in the 2015 Act. The
recommendation takes account of the requirement to ensure that present needs are
met without compromising the ability of future generations to meet their own needs. It
is therefore considered that there would be no significant or unacceptable impact
upon the achievement of well-being objectives as a result of the proposed
recommendation.

4. SUMMARY AND CONCLUSION:
4.1 In respecting the comments of the Town Council, Officers consider it would be reasonable to
consent to the removal of the 21 day restriction condition.

4.2 The main planning permission is for a touring caravan site and has a condition restricting use
to a 6 month occupancy season. The proposal to allow touring caravans to use the site for
periods longer than 21 days is unlikely to have additional adverse effects on the immediate
locality in terms of landscape, residential amenity, or highways impacts.

4.3 There is general policy encouragement for tourism use in appropriate locations, and the
existence of condition no. 4 and 5 of the 2018 April permission provides the Council with
relevant control to ensure there are no conflicts with rural restraints policies.

RECOMMENDATION: GRANT- deletion of Condition 3 of planning permission 43/2018/0330

Page 102



Agenda Item 11

PLANNING COMMITTEE

12" SEPTEMBER 2018

INFORMATION REPORT BY THE HEAD OF PLANNING AND PUBLIC PROTECTION

PLANNING APPEALS UPDATE

1. PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1 This item provides members with information on recent planning appeal decisions received from
the Planning Inspectorate on cases within the County. It covers the 6 month period from March
2018 to date.

2. CONTENTS

2.1 Appendix A attached contains a quick guide table listing the appeal decisions received in this

period, with basic information including the outcome, type of appeal, and input from Planning

Committee and Town / Community Councils.

2.2 Appendix B provides a summary of key points relevant to each case.

2.3 If Members wish to read the full versions of the Planning Inspectors’ decisions on the appeals,

these can be viewed via the Denbighshire website (Planning; Find a planning application; (Insert
reference number of application); Search; Documents; Appeal decision.

3. RECOMMENDATION

3.1 That the report be received for information.

EMLYN GWYNEDD JONES HEAD OF PLANNING AND PUBLIC PROTECTION

Page 103



This page is intentionally left blank



GOT obed

APPENDIX A

APPEAL SUMMARY

Decision Officer Committee
Appeal Case Date Decision Appeal Type Recommendation Decision Town Council Response
Delegated -
63 Trewen Denbigh 20/03/2018 Allow Written Refuse N/a No objection
50 Bath Street, Rhyl 19/07/2018 Allow Written Refuse Refuse No objection
Delegated -
The Chalet, Pwllglas 25/04/2018 Dismiss Written Refuse N/A No objection
Delegated -
Coed yr Hengoed, Bontuchel 08/06/2018 Partdis Written Refuse N/A No objection
8 Birch Grove, Prestatyn 07/08/2018 Dismiss Householder Grant Refuse Objection

e A total of 5 appeal decisions received from 1/3/2018 —1/9/2018

¢ All were planning appeals

¢ 2 were allowed, 3 were dismissed (60% success)

¢ all the appeals were dealt with through the written process

¢ 2 of the 5 decisions were in relation to applications refused at Planning Committee. Both decisions of the Committee were upheld by the Planning Inspectorate.
¢ 3 of the 5 planning appeals arose from delegated Officer decisions. 2 of the 3 were dismissed

¢ All 2 allowed appeals were in relation to applications on which the respective Community Councils had raised no objections

e Of the 3 dismissed appeals, the respective Community Councils had raised objections to 2 of the applications.

¢ No costs were awarded against the Council in any of the cases.



Page 106



APPENDIX B
APPEALS SUMMARY
15t March — 15t September 2018

APPEALS ALLOWED

1. APPLICATION NO. 01/2017/0999

SITE ADDRESS: 63 Trewen, Denbigh

PROPOSAL: First floor extension

BASIS OF REFUSAL: Unacceptable degree of overshadowing of windows and overbearing impact on rear
elevation of adjoining property (64 Trewen).

TYPE OF APPEAL: Written representations
COSTS AWARDED AGAINST COUNCIL: N/a

ISSUES OF NOTE
The Inspector considered the main issue was the effect of the proposal on the living conditions of the
occupants of the neighbouring property, 64 Trewen, by virtue of overshadowing and outlook.

Inspector’s conclusions:

On balance concluded that the proposed development would not harm the living conditions of the occupants
of 64 Trewen. Assessed the 45 degree guide and accepted the Council’s assessment that this would be
infringed, but having regard to the extent of infringement and the fact that the extension would not interrupt
sunlight or cast shadow over the property for much of the day, did not conclude the extension would cause
significant issues with No. 64. Agreed with the Council that the future insertion of any additional windows in
the extension should be controlled

2. APPLICATION NO. 45/2017/0677
SITE ADDRESS: 50 Bath Street, Rhyl
PROPOSAL: Change of use from dwelling to family assessment centre.
BASIS OF REFUSAL: Loss of single occupancy dwelling and impact on housing mix in the area; adverse
cumulative impact of an additional support service use in the area along with potential negative impacts on
the vulnerable users of the property.
TYPE OF APPEAL: Written representations
ISSUES OF NOTE
The Inspector considered the main issues to be:-
Whether the proposal would cause the unacceptable loss of a unit of residential accommodation; and,
The effect of the proposal on the character of the surrounding area, on the future residents living conditions,

and on the provision of local services.

Inspector’s conclusions:

Page 107



The loss of a single family dwelling within the locality would not materially alter the housing mix within the
area, nor undermine the aims of policy BSC1, policy RD1 or national planning policy. As it was the loss of
just one unit this would not have a major impact.

The proposed development would not materially alter the character of the area; there is no substantive
evidence that the proposal would perpetuate a negative perception of the area, be detrimental to the area’s
character, or undermine planning policies.

APPEALS DISMISSED

3. APPLICATION NO. 20/2017/0148

SITE ADDRESS: The Chalet, The Watermill, Pwllglas

PROPOSAL: Replacement of a residential caravan with a single replacement dwelling and garage

BASIS OF REFUSAL: Unacceptable in principle, undermining planning policies relating to new development
outside established settlements (planning policies BSC8, BSC9 and RD 4), conflicting with principles of
settlement planning and sustainable development,

TYPE OF APPEAL: Written representations
COSTS AWARDED AGAINST COUNCIL: N/a

ISSUES OF NOTE
The Inspector considered the main issue was whether there are other material considerations sufficient to
outweigh any conflict with local and national planning policies.

Inspector’s conclusions:

The development conflicts with local and national planning policies. The Certificate of Lawful Development
establish the use of land as a caravan site for the stationing of one static caravan for all year round
residential occupation. A caravan is not regarded as a building for the purposes of applying LDP Policy RD
4. National policy and the development plan seek to control residential development outside settlement
boundaries. Other material considerations are insufficient to outweigh the conflict with important local and
national planning policies.

Postscript / practice points
The Inspector’s decision reaffirms the important distinction to be made that a caravan cannot be considered
a dwelling for purposes of the replacement dwellings policy.

4. APPLICATION NO. 14/2017/0487

SITE ADDRESS: Coed yr Hengoed, Bontuchel, Ruthin

PROPOSAL: Deletion of conditions 3, 4, 5 and 6 of planning permission 14/2017/0487, requiring
approval of lighting, restricting external storage, provision of planting, and restricting sound
amplification systems and playing of music.

TYPE OF APPEAL: Written representations

Page 108



ISSUES OF NOTE
The Inspector considered the main issue was whether the disputed conditions are reasonable and
necessary.

Inspector’s conclusions:
Condition 3 (external lighting) - the imposition of the condition is reasonable and necessary. Condition
retained.

Condition 4 (Restrictions on external storage) — the condition is varied to delete reference to storage of
external storage.

Condition 5 (Requirement for submission of planting scheme) - the imposition of the condition is reasonable
and necessary. Condition retained.

Condition 6 (Restriction on sound amplification systems and playing of music) — imposition of the condition is
unreasonable. Condition deleted.

5. APPLICATION NO. 43/2017/1212

SITE ADDRESS: 8 Birch Grove, Preststyn

PROPOSAL.: First floor extension above a single storey ground floor extension previously
approved by way of a Proposed Lawful Development Certificate.

BASIS OF REFUSAL: Unacceptably overbearing impact on adjoining properties
TYPE OF APPEAL: Householder
COSTS AWARDED AGAINST COUNCIL: N/A

ISSUES OF NOTE
The Inspector considered the main issues to be:

e The effect of the proposed development on the living conditions of the occupiers of Nos 8 and 10
Birch Grove in relation to visual impact resulting from the poor design of the new window serving
bedroom 3 causing overlooking between windows.

e The use of a planning condition to modify the proposed development was contrary to paragraph
4.13 of the Welsh Government Circular- The Use of Planning Conditions for Development
Management (WGC 016/2014) which states “a condition modifying the development cannot be
imposed if it would make the development permitted substantially different from that comprised in
the application... “. The Inspector considered the modification sought by the condition would be a
substantial modification and could not be imposed.

Inspector’s conclusions:

The Inspector did not consider there would be unacceptable impact on drainage, the living conditions of the
occupiers of Nos 6 and 10 in relation to visual impact, nor would it lead to an unacceptable loss of direct
sunlight to these properties. There would be overlooking potential from the proposed side bedroom window
(bedroom 3), leading to unacceptable loss of privacy in relation to No.10 - a matter it was not considered
could be addressed through imposition of a condition.

The Inspector considered the proposal conflicts with policy as it is of poor design that would fail to provide
satisfactory living conditions for the occupiers of No.8 due to visual impact, and for the occupiers of Nos. 8
and 10 due to overlooking between windows.

Page 109



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	1 APOLOGIES
	VotingprocedureatPlanningCommittee

	2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
	4 MINUTES
	5 APPLICATION NO. 01/2018/0607 - LAND AT CAE TOPYN OFF OLD RUTHIN ROAD, FFORDD EGLWYSWEN, DENBIGH
	Final report 01_2018_0607
	01/2018/0607
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page


	6 APPLICATION NO. 21/2018/0166 - 12 BRYN ARTRO AVENUE, LLANFERRES, MOLD
	Final report 21_2018_0166
	21/2018/0166
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page


	7 APPLICATION NO 21/2018/0293 - 16 RECTORY LANE, LLANFERRES, MOLD
	Final report 21_2018_0293
	21/2018/0293
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page


	8 APPLICATION NO. 43/2018/0328 - 1-5 PARC DYFFRYN INDUSTRIAL ESTATE, PRESTATYN
	Final report 43_2018_0328
	43/2018/0328
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page


	9 APPLICATION NO. 43/2018/0439 - 45 BEACH ROAD WEST, PRESTATYN
	Final report 43-2018-0439
	43/2018/0439
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page


	10 APPLICATION NO. 43/2018/0522 - FOUR WINDS FARM CARAVAN SITE, FFORDD FFYNNON, PRESTATYN
	Final report 43_2018_0522
	43/2018/0522
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page


	11 INFORMATION REPORT - PLANNING APPEALS UPDATE
	Planning appeals update report 2 - Summary Table Sept 18
	Planning appeals update report 3 - summary of cases.  Sept 18v2




